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COMPANY'S VISION & MISSION

Our Vision

To build a trustworthy and advanced transportation network by ensuring cost-effective &
best-fit business solution, that can add valueto the lives of folks and ultimately increasing
value for our Stakeholders and Connecting people at large, businesses and communities to a
better future through quality services in transportation andlogistics.

Our Mission

Our mission is to provide the necessary financial substance to sustain the company andits

employees and to meet our customers’ requirements through high quality service, cost

control and the development of our human capital. The Company look forward to make

efforts on continuing to be as the preferred logistics company with quality services and

innovation to create sustainable growth for business and society by focusing to the key

elements:

« Committed towardszero defective, on-timedelivery.

e Implement up-to-the-minutecost-effective logistics solutions from timeto time.

¢ Bring out best in the sector and impact the Indian Transportation Industrypositively.

e Assist flexibility and receptiveness to dynamic customer needs.

« Emerge as substantial platform to bring impetusin the transport segment.

e Be a reliable business house that is working consistently towards society &

environment, adhering to safety and health of people.



 

COMPANY’S PROFILE

With a vision to augment transport accessibility even in the most unexplored regions of
India, the founding stone of Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited (OBCL) waslaid downin the year
1994 by Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawal. In the past decade, OBCL hasevolved as the signature
brand of the Indian transport industry. It has played vital role in connecting vivid sectors
and addedvaluetothe lives of millions.

The company stands as a leader because of its constant standard approach in grooming
managerial resources and streamlining manpower, setting the standard in quality and
fostering assurances of service. We are specialized in providing industry-focused solutions
integrated with leading-edge technology. The team is committed to the proper execution of
the operations from start to end and that remains ourchief goal.

Companyfulfil its commitments and arrange for highly efficient service through a robust
network and associated offices servicing the entire terminus covering the entire length and
breadth of India. It is resourcefully equipped with over 15 (10 wheelers trucks), 45 (12
wheelers trucks), 10 (14 wheelers trucks), 5 (16 wheelers trucks) and 70trailers. Initially,
OBCLstarted with a smalloffice space with few clients. With continuousefforts of the OBCL

team, the company gained huge fame andcollaborated with someof the finest clients and
added leading companiesin the clientelelist.

The company has successfully transformed the outlook of the folks towards the
transportation sector andis dealing bulk transportation up to 1 lakh tonne per annum.

Looking ahead towardshigher ends. To establish new fangled milestones in our journey, we
are adding more trucks to our fleet so that we mayserve better and extract satisfactory
results for ourclients.

“Wetake up transportation remits from anywhere to anywhere in pan India”



 

BRIEF PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 

Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawalis the Chairman
cum Managing Director and one of the
promoters of the company. He has been on

the Board since incorporation. He plays a
lead role in the Administration & Fleet
Management of the Company and operates
from the Headoffice. He has experience of
over 30 years in transport and logistics
industry and did his matriculation from
Haryana Boardin the year 1972.

It is indeed very inspiring that a man came
up with his dreams from onestate to another
and achieved those dreams. With the vision
of the Chairman “Orissa Bengal Carrier
Ltd” has expanded its business from one
state to almostall the states by establishing
more than 50 Branchesacross the Country.

Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawal
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawalis the Promoter

and Executive Director of the Company. He
has an experience of more than 20 years in
transport and logistics industry and is under
matriculate. He has been instrumentalin the
growth and strategy of our business. He
currently looks after the operations of
Western Region of India operating from
Nagpur Branch. Heis an expert in human
resources and humanrelations. He has been
on the board since April 7, 1997.

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal
Wholetime Director 



 

Mr. Ravi Agrawal is Master of Business
administration from Australia. He looks after
the major portion of the operations andfleet
management in the Company. Heis in the

Boardsince July 1, 2018.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal also devotes his time on
frequently visiting the company’s campuses
and interacts with the staffs at all levels. He
promotes the employees at all levels to
increase the energyin the organization and he
believes that the employees and stakeholders
are the heart of the successes and potential of
the Company. He plays a very vital role in
handling the negotiations with bankers,
employees, our customers, dealers, suppliers
and other business associates for their
support and cooperation.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal never stops in making
efforts to take the company towards a
promising future.

Mr. Ravi Agrawal
Wholetime Director

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal is the Non-
Executive Director and one of the promoters
of the company and is under matriculate. She
has been Director of our Company since
incorporation.

Mrs. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal
Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Sahil Batra is a Master of Business
Administration from the Swami Vivekanand
Technical University, Bhilai Chhattisgarh. He
is currently employed with Shri Bajrang

Power & Ispat Ltd. as Assistant General
Manager since August 2013. He has been on
the board since December 1, 2017.

Mr.Sahil Batra
IndependentDirector

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain is a Bachelor of
Commerce from the Sambalpur University,
Bhawanipatna. He has been on the board
since December1, 2017.

Mr. RajkumarJain
IndependentDirector



 

Mr. Akshay Agrawal is a_ Business
Management Graduate from Middlesex
University, London. Heis serving as a Chief
Financial Officer since 1st! December, 2017.

He possesses first-rate operational planning
and organizational abilities, coupled with
good communication skills and knowledge in
all aspects of operations business
management, Accounts & Finance. He is
focused on delivering an exceptional level of
service and value with a proven successful
track record of achievements by adopting
attention to detail, innovation and quality.

Mr. Akshay Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer

CS Aakash Kumar Sahu is an Associate
Member of The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India since May 2017. Mr.
Aakash Kumar Sahu has expertise in
Taxation, Corporate Law, Financial

Managementandother relevant Laws. He has

been given the award for academic excellence
bythe various institutions. He has won many
awards including the Best MSOPparticipant
by ICSI, New Delhi in 2017 and as the Best
Participant Award by the ICAI, Raipur in
2018. He handles the Secretarial Compliances,
filings of the Company andassists the Board
of Directors for better Corporate Governance.

CS Aakash Kumar Sahu
CompanySecretary & Compliance Officer



 

WORDS FROM CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

I present before you your Company’s AnnualReportfor the Financial Year 2019-20.

I am pleased to report another year with conventional performance achieving revenues of
*38,897.68 Lacs. Though the revenue growth may not appear high, given the ‘under pressure’

market situation the same is acceptable. Your company achieved decent freight volume
during the year. It missed out on the typical year end surge that gets witnessed during
Marchendeveryfiscal due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Adversity is the true test of a Character. The Company has achieved every other milestone
till date and aimsto achieve further. We aim to deliver better quality service and to deliver

on time again and again but in the final days of the year end the purposes throughout the
world has been driven by the nature. The Companyprioritised the health and safety of its
employeesin this Pandemic.

This is an extraordinary situation of tough times the world has ever come across. The most
affected business industry is the transport andlogistics industry due the Covid-19 pandemic

but problemsrealises us that we are alive. We are walking through tough times but with no
loss of enthusiasm. Weall are in this together. The Company is committed towardsits social
responsibility and is abiding the Government norms and measures along with adopting the
work from homepolicy for its employees and paid thesalaries in full. Furthermore in this
pandemic also we managed and are happy to announce that the Board of Directors have
proposed a final Dividend of Rs 0.50 per equity share subject to the approval of the
shareholders.

The coming few months will be challenging but the Company always looks forward to
explore some of the untouchedsectors of the transport industry to create more opportunities
in the business and moving forward to a more prosperous future by building much more
better relationships and ties across India with all stakeholders our customers, colleagues,
partners andsociety.

Onbehalf of the Board of Directors of Orissa Bengal Carrier Ltd, I thankall the stakeholders

for continuedtrust, confidence and support.

With Warm Regards
Ratan Kumar Agrawal
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01608584) Chairman & Managing Director

Shri Ravi Agrawal (DIN: 01392652) Wholetime Director

Shri Manoj Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01590282) Wholetime Director

Smt. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal (DIN: 01540586) Non- Executive & Woman Director

Shri Sahil Batra (DIN: 06422459) IndependentDirector

Shri Raj KumarJain (DIN: 08015385) IndependentDirector   
 

STATUTORY AUDITOR M/s AGRAWAL & PANSARI

Chartered Accountants

2nd Floor, M.LG-29, Indravati Colony, Raja Talab

Ward, Off. Canal Linking Road, Raipur (C.G.)

Phn- +91 9981502030
Firm Registration No.: 003350C
 

COMPANY SECRETARY &

COMPLIANCEOFFICER

CS AAKASH KUMAR SAHU

 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) MR. AKSHAY AGRAWAL

  CONSULTING COMPANY

SECRETARY & SECRETARIAL

AUDITOR  
M/s ANIL AGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES

CompanySecretaries
Royal-105, G T Exotica, Shankar Nagar,

Raipur(C.G.) 492001
Mo. No.- +91 7898986867/9575111112
  



 

BANKERS HDFC BANK LTD

B-3& C9, Near Sai Mandir, In front of Officers

Colony, Gate No. 2, Devendra Nagar Road, Sai

Vihar, Raipur - Chhattisgarh 492009

Tel: +91-9303335837

Email: rahul.asrani@hdfcbank.com
Website: www.hdfcbank.com

AXIS BANK LTD

Loan Centre, Pandri Raipur - Chhattisgarh Tel: +91-

0771-4090323

Email: loans@axisbank.com

KOTAK MANHINDRABANKLTD.
27 BKC, C27, G BLOCK, BANDRA KURLA

COMPLEX, BANDRA (E) MUMBAI 400051
MAHARASHTRA400051

EMAIL: RAVI.KUKREJA@KOTAK.COM
CONTACT: 95222-61971 

REGISTERED OFFICE

COMPANY, CIN, EMAIL

WEBSITE

OF

ID &

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD
Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandri, Raipur (C.G)-492001

CIN: L63090CT1994PLC008732

Website:-www.obclimited.com
E-mail:-raipur@obclimited.com

Phn- 0771-2281311

 

 

CORPORATE

COMPANY

OFFICE OF ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD
A-1, 3rd Floor C.G. Elite complex, Opposite Mandi
Gate, VidhansabhaRoad, Pandri, Raipur- 492001
 

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER

AGENT

BIGSHARESERVICESPVT. LTD.

1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant

    
 

 

 
 

 

  

Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East,

Mumbai400059, Tel : +91-22-6263 8200

Fax : +91-22-6263 8299

E-mail: ipo@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

LISTING BSE LIMITED (SMEPlatform)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street
Mumbai- 400001

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

POSITION AUDIT NOMINATION & STAKEHOLDERS CSR
COMMITTEE REMUNERATION RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

Chairman Shri Raj Kumar Shri Sahil Batra Shri Sahil Batra Shri Sahil Batra
Jain

Member ShriSahil Batra Shri RajKumarJain Shri Ratan Kumar Shri RajKumar
Agrawal Jain

Member Shri Manoj Smt. Shakuntala Devi Shri Manoj Agrawal Smt. Shakuntala
Agrawal Agrawal Devi Agrawal      
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Celebration of25Incorporation Anniversary
 

 

Orissa Bengal Carrier Ltd. Celebrated its 25Incorporation Anniversary on 18 October,
2019 Rosebay Resorts, Ring Road No. 3, Raipur (C.G.). The Chief Guests of the occasion
were:

His Excellency Shri Ajay Thakur Ji (SME Head BombayStock Exchange) as the Chief Guest.

His Excellency Shri Kuldeep Juneja Ji (Member of Legislative Assembly, North Raipur
Governmentof Chhattisgarh) as the Guest of Honour.

His Excellency Shri H. S. Sahni Ji (President Transport Wing, Chhattisgarh Chamber of
Commerce) as the Second Guest of Honour.

His Excellency Shri DevJi Bhai Patel (Ex-Memberof Legislative Assembly) as the third Guest
of Honour.

With the Signatories of the Company,all the members of the OBCL Family including the
employees from Head office and Branch Representatives participated and enjoyed the
evening. The appreciation certificates were given to the employees by the Chairman Sir

followed by the motivational speeches and sharing the experiences by the Directors.



WORDS OF CHAIRMAN

fasts afafe wo, duit & wergu ud Uraat |

out & ga wei & sre we ang wa ot ahah sofefa o A aga waa & sik ono wel oT Mara
HRM g!

sehr ore ofr faftes 4 sot ar sik ciaaté fasta ot yeaa 1985 Sat!

HS Ue & ae WAR Wet A up ole siftha at eafte fear ot ant aa hot or woes sites
wT!

 

 

1990 & age Ff cowt at Soesik arcane fact format Sad gu MR alaie V aisUA
fraHl sine oer & fae GSM ae HI visde fates Gott & wa F ese SeWaT! Ga aR A
out & urea ets 25 ms et!

2010 F butt wt isdfates 4 ulefates F pad Hera aT |

ana Ssh ara oR fats us elas oA at uw fees dur @ fora Ha 250 S sift Bex
URS ¢. Hw wt av 2018 & sta are F aire wiUR& sme Wewre or feree Here Ta. Hott
Tawt tect siz GY ochers ot Gat sme Res Sos sik sa as Sor A sy geen faker wT
UeRSHHT 250 MUHI UTdy Ae AAT.

oeWSaTed Sra8 fHSot A senaRHts 50 stat HT Vita ST HTT SR Usa TH sy
SOR wi ISM z !

etHU&Us 100 S sifiiem mnfsai e sie Hs Stlel Gl Me visGrGH sa Baer Ht Bais
al gated stk sift cen aida& are WI oes B soa PRRORweds |

Ba dea RhoH Sot S YS GT St Aaa ik ora aural & avs & ary wrefa 500 Area af
2019 USM wt ety cept sme fees Sari at ye A osha saSw fates 406 at BIA
Ura fear 3 at at ae 2018 A Hort oT 13 at BI ET MT!

Boot 3 ys wl Raunat wt Sot ot waa a aear & feu anu ad ora F ! ea aah
Sra SSA SA RT 8 fe Sot vise at ex GHfeat Gr MGAGS SR SX HSA HT TY THX sty
PRRUROeSue Saal HlWe HoH.
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sa AF HET TEM gst:

Ba OUR F Pea oof afe alg often or aw et S a Seat Ye GX amt ISA HT TT Hed S
of6 fiers, Raa, Torasik Tew UA& Apel Hr Tae sik TAHT Hex HAs !

3g ait or sa ordsa A sufi eA & few wrare!

 



WORDSBYMr. RAVIAGRAWAL(Wholetime Director) 

A very Goodevening ladies and gentleman,

I warmly welcome youall to the 25'* Incorporation Anniversary of ORISSA BENGAL
CARRIER LTD.

The Company had a long and momentous journey since incorporation. I joined the
operations in the year 2010 but started to understand since childhood. I am delighted with
the progress that the Company has made.It is the continued support andtrustof all the
stakeholders in the Company that has enabled us to deliver sustained performance and
growthoverthe years.

Its been 25 years and we always aimed to deliver better quality service and to deliver on
time. The Company has always looked forward to connect to a prosperous future by
building better relationships and ties across India with all stakeholders- our customers,
colleagues, partners andsociety.

I frequently visit our company’s campusesandinteract with ourstaffs at all levels. I am glad
to notice a renewedsense of vigor and energy in the organization. Ourstaffs are at the heart
of our successes and potential, and I wouldlike to gratefully acknowledge their commitment
and contribution.

Before I conclude, I would like to express my gratitude to all the stakeholders for their
continued co-operation. I thank my fellow Directors for their support and valuable
guidance. I also thank our government, bankers, employees, our customers, dealers,

suppliers and other businessassociates for their support and cooperation.

I look forward to your continued supportto take the company towardsa promisingfuture.

Andlastly

I feel extremely lucky to have such a motivating, inspiring and fantastic teacher in the role as a
fatherin mylife.

I can proudly say that he can be said as a Dronacharya for us with an ocean of knowledge and
experience in the diversified fields. His such knowledge and experience is like a Gurukul for us,
whether surrounded by him or not everytime, its upon us that how can we become an Eklavya and
makeefforts to learn from his skills and expertise.

“I stronglybelieve his saying that wonder happens when preparation meets opportunities.”

Thank you Ladies and Gentlemen for your time, kind attention and to be a part ofthis

occasion of happiness.



REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 

 

To,

The Members,

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 25 Annual Report on the business and

operations of the company for the year ended on 31st March, 2020 together with audited

financial statements and the reportof the directors and the auditors thereon.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, performance of the companyis as under:

(Amountin Lacs’)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

PARTICULARS 31/03/2020 31/03/2019

Revenue from Operation 38,897.68 48,831.30

Other Income 142.13 175.06

Total Revenue 39039.81 49,006.36

Employees Benefits Expense 295.69 276.53

Finance Cost 286.27 260.47

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 526.00 521.98

Other Expenses 521.04 626.97

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1235.24 1495.63

Current Tax 323.19 444,82

Deferred Tax (18.15) (12.74)

Earlier year incometax - -

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 930.20 1063.55

Earnings Per Equity Share:

Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 4.41 5.04   



2. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK 

During the Year under review, Your Companyhas recorded Revenue from Operation of Rs

38897.68 Lacs and Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 930.20 Lacs respectively. The financial result as

reflected in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the Companyis self-explanatory.Your directors

are of the view that the companyhassignaled good progress and will continue to access the

path of success in succeeding financial years and are hopefulfor the bright future prospects.

Moreover,it s also assured that the Managementwill leave no efforts untouched to increase

the profitability in the forth comingyears also.

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations*) and Section 136 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with MCACirculars

and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the Annual Report containing salient features of the

financial statements, including for the financial year 2019-20, along with statement

containing salient features of the Directors’ Report (including ManagementDiscussion &

Analysis) is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email

addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories.

Full version of Annual Report 2019-20 is also available for inspection at the registered office

of the Company during working hours up to the date of ensuing Annual general meeting

(AGM). It is also available at the Companys website.

4. IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON THE BUSINESS 

The impact of COVID-19 pandemic has beenfelt all over the world. The effect on human

lives has been unprecedented. Due to the outbreak of novel Corona virus disease, the

registered office and business operations were shut down by the Companyas per the

lockdowndirectives of Government and the business of the Company has been impacted.

The Company’s business operations were affected during the month of March, April and

Maypartially. Only the permissible transport operations were in function. The Company

opened up its office activity partially during the month of May, 2020 with an extremely

limited work and staffs. The company is complying with all the guidelines issued by the

Government to control the spread of Corona virus. The Company is taking measures

frequently to sanitize its working premises and also taking steps to spread awareness

amongstthe office staffs. The Company has now fully resumedits operations according to

the permissible Government guidelines. The Company expects to come in its normal

working operation in due course; however,this is contingent on variousexternal factors such

as spread of COVID-19 pandemic, lockdown guidelinesetc.



5. DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors of the Companyhas proposed dividendof Rs 0.50/- per equity share,

for the financial year 2019-20 which is subject to approval of members in Annual General

Meeting.If approvedasstated,final dividend will be paid to the shareholders, whose names

appear as membersin the Register of Members of the Companyas on 28th August, 2020. The

total dividend appropriation (excluding dividend distribution tax) for the financial year

2019-20 is Rs 1,05,41,395/-.

The Register of Members and Sharetransfer books will remain closed from 29t August 2020

to 04th September 2020 (both daysinclusive) for the purpose of paymentof final dividend for

the financial year ended 31stMarch, 2020 and the Annualgeneral meeting.

6. CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no changein the nature of business, as carried on by the company.

7. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Companyhasnottransferred any amountto reserves.

8. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is Rs. 24,00,00,000/- comprising of

2,40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and the Paid-up Share Capital is Rs. 21,08,27,900/-

comprising of 2,10,82,790 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. During the year, the Company has

notalteredits share capital.

9. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9
 

The extract of the annual return pursuantto section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in

"Annexure A"andis attachedto this report.

10. BOARD MEETINGS AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING
 

During the year underreview,thirteen (13) Board meetings were held. The maximum time-

gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days. The Board met on



15.04.2019, 17.05.2019, 29.05.2019, 27.06.2019, 29.06.2019, 29.07.2019, 25.09.2019, 22.10.2019,

14.11.2019, 10.01.2020, 10.02.2020, 27.02.2020, 06.03.2020.

The Details of Number of Board meeting attended byeach director are as follows:-
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sr.No. Nameof Director No.of Board
Meeting Attended

1 Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawal 13

2 Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal 5

3 Mr. Ravi Agrawal 13

4 Mrs Shakuntala Devi Agrawal 13

5 Mr.Sahil Batra 5

6 Mr. Raj KumarJain 5     
Further, IndependentDirectors’ separate meeting was duly convened andheld on 30.03.2020

to discuss:

a) Review & Evaluation of the performance of Non-IndependentDirectors and the Board

of Directors as a whole.

b) Review of the performance of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

c) Assessmentof the quality, quantity and timelinessof flow of information between

the Managementandthe Board.

11. BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section

134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state —

a) In the preparation of the annualaccounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

followed andthere are no material departures from the same;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgements andestimates that are reasonable and prudentsoasto give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the companyatthe end of the financial year and of the profit

and loss of the companyfor that year;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and

ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance withthe provisions

of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting

fraud and otherirregularities;



d) the directors had prepared annualaccounts on a going concern basis;

e) the directors had laid downinternal financial controls to be followed by the

companyandthat suchinternal financial controls are adequate and are operating

effectively;

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions

of all applicable laws and such systems were adequate and__ operatingeffectively.

12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED

PARTIES
 

During the year underreport, the Companyhasentered into transactions with related party

and all such transactions were carried on at arm’s length price in the ordinary course of

business. Information on transactionswith related parties pursuantto section 134(3)(h) of the

act read with Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in “Annexure-B” in

Form AOC-2 and the same formspart of this report.

13. AUDITORS

(i) Statutory Auditor:

M/s. Agrawal & Pansari, Chartered Accountants, Raipur were appointed at the annual

general meeting held on, 09July, 2018 as statutory auditor of the Companyto hold office

until conclusion of Annual General Meetingto be held in the year 2023.

Section 139 of the Act has been amended vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 by the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 07'* May, 2018 and has done away with the requirementof

seeking ratification of Members for appointment of Auditors at every annual general

meeting. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of

Statutory Auditors at the ensuring AGM. Under Section 139 and 141 of the Act and Rules

framed there under, M/s. Agrawal & Pansari confirmed that they are not disqualified from

continuing as statutory auditors of the Company and furnisheda valid certificate issued by

the Peer Review Boardofthe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(ii) Internal Auditor:

M/s G. Kumar & Company, Chartered Accountants, Raipur, (FRN No. 0322108E) has

continuedas Internal Auditors of the Company.



14. AUDITORS’ REPORT

There is no qualification in the Auditors’ Report and hence no explanationis called for.

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has

appointed M/s Anil Agrawal & Associates, Company Secretaries, to undertake the

Secretarial Audit of the Companyfor the F.Y. 2019-20. The report of the Secretarial Audit is

annexedto this report as "Annexure C".

Secretarial Auditors’ report is self explanatory and therefore does not require further

comments and explanation.

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER

SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIESACT,2013
 

 

During the year under report, the Company has not granted any loan or provided any

guarantee or made any investmentas specified in Section 186 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Henceno approvalfrom the shareholders in this regard was required.

17. PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF

WOMEN & WORKPLACE
 

The Company has accepted zero tolerance policy on sexual harassment. In that line the

Board takes anti sexual harassment initiatives by way of Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal of Sexual Harassmentat the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual

Harassment of Womenat Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and

the Rules there under and they responsible to inquire into complaints (if any) of sexual

harassmentand take appropriate action. There aims to provide protection to employees at

the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters

connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working environment,

where employeesfeel secure.

The Companyhasnot received any complaint of sexual harassmentduringthe financial year

2019-20.



18. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The company has maintained good industrial relations onall fronts. Your directors wish to

place on record their appreciation for the honest and efficient services rendered by the

employees of the company.

19. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Company hasa professional Board with right mix of knowledge, skills and expertise

with an optimum combination of executive, nonexecutive and independent Directors

including one womanDirector. The Board provides strategic guidance and direction to the

Companyin achievingits business objectives and protecting the interest of the stakeholders.

Mr. Ratan Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01608584) continued as Managing Director of the

Company. Mr Manoj Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01590282) & Mr Ravi Agrawal (DIN: 01392652)

continued as Wholetime Directors of the Company. MrSahil Batra (DIN: 06422459) and Mr

Raj Kumar Jain (DIN: 08015385) continued as IndependentDirectors of the Company. Smt.

Shakuntala Devi Agrawal (DIN: 01608318) continued as Non-Executive Director of the

Company. As per Section 149(1) read with Rule 3 of The Companies (Appointment and

Qualification of directors) Rules, 2014 we also consider Smt. Shakuntala Devi Agrawalas the

womendirector of the company.

Mr Akshay Agrawalhad continued as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company and Mr

Aakash KumarSahu continued as CompanySecretary of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

one-third of such of the Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year

and, if eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at every AGM. Consequently Smt

Shakuntala Devi Agrawal (DIN: 01608318) will retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, and

being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment in accordance with provisions of the

Companies Act.

20. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

As required under the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules made

there under the Company has an adequately qualified Audit Committee constituted in

accordance withthe provisions of Companies Act, 2013.



The Audit Committee continued working under Chairmanship of Shri Raj KumarJain with

Shri Sahil Batra and Shri Manoj Agrawal as co-members. During the year, the sub-committee

met on 27.05.2019, 15.07.2019, 05.11.2019 and 15.02.2020 with full attendanceofall the members.

The composition of the Audit Committee as at March 31, 2020 is as under:

 

 

 

 

Nameof Director Category

Raj KumarJain Non Executive IndependentDirector

Sahil Batra Non Executive IndependentDirector

Manoj Kumar Agrawal Executive Director    
Terms of Reference: The termsof reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows:

a. Oversight, the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure ofits financial

informationto ensurethatthe financial statementis correct, sufficient and credible

b. Review and complianceof internal control systems.
Investigation of anyfinancial matteror a transaction.

d. Review of the scope of Audit, the half yearly and Annual Financial statements before
submissionto the Board.

e. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the
replacement or removalof the statutory auditor and thefixation of audit fees.

f. Assessing the objectivity of the external auditors including the consideration of any other
non-audit work performedby the externalauditors.

g. Carrying out any other function.

2

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
 

As required underthe provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules made

there under the Nomination and Remuneration Committee continued working under

Chairmanship of Shri Sahil Batra with Shri Raj kumarJain and Smt. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal

as co-members. During the year, the sub-committee met on 28.05.2019, 15.07.2019, 05.11.2019

and 15.02.2020 with full attendanceofall the members.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at March 31, 2020 is as

under:

 

Nameof Director Category

 

Sahil Batra Non Executive IndependentDirector    



 

RajkumarJain Non Executive IndependentDirector
 

Shakuntala Devi Agrawal Non Executive Director
    

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

are broadly as follows:

a. Review the performance of the Managing Director and the Whole-time Directors, after
considering the Company's performance.

b. Recommendto the Board remuneration including salary, perquisites and commission to
be paid to the Company's ManagingDirector and Whole-timeDirectors.

c. Finalize the perquisites package of the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors
withinthe overall ceiling fixed by the Board.

d. Recommendfor appointment of Managing Directors & Whole TimeDirector.
e. Recommendfor increase in Remuneration of Managing Director & Whole Time Director.

C. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules made there

under the Company has an adequately qualified Stakeholders Relationship Committee

constituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee continued working under Chairmanship of Shri

Sahil Batra with Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal and Shri Manoj Agrawal as co-members. During

the year, the sub-committee met on 21.09.2019 & 13.03.2020 full attendance ofall the members.

The compositionof the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as at March 31, 2020 is as under:

 

 

 

 

Nameof Director Category

Sahil Batra Non Executive IndependentDirector

Ratan Kumar Agrawal Managing Director

Manoj Kumar Agrawal Executive Director    
Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are

broadlyasfollows:

a. Formulation of policies and procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure
speedy disposal of various requests received from security holders from timeto time.



. Redressal of shareholders and investor complaints/ grievances e.g. transfers of shares,
non-receipt of balancesheet, non-receipt of declared dividendetc.
To approve, register, refuse to register transfer / transmission of shares and other
securities.

. To sub-divide, consolidate and / or replace any share or othersecurities certificate(s) of
the Company.

. To authorize printing of Share Certificates post authorization from the Board of Directors
of the Company.
To monitor and review the performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company and provides continuous guidance to improve the
service levels for investors.

. Monitor and review any investor complaints received by the Company or through SEBI,
SCORESand ensureits timely and speedy resolution, in consultation with the Company
Secretary and Complianceofficer and RTA of the Company.

D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMIITTEE
 

Pursuant to the As provisionsof section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules madethere

under the Company has an adequately qualified Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

constituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility continued working under Chairmanshipof Shri Sahil Batra

with Shri Raj kumarJain and Smt. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal as co-members. During the year,

the sub-committee met on 28.05.2019, 20.07.2019 & 25.03.2020 with full attendance of all the

members.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as at March 31, 2020 is as

under:

 

Nameof Director Category

 

 

   
Sahil Batra Non Executive IndependentDirector

RajkumarJain Non Executive IndependentDirector

Shakuntala Devi Agrawal Non Executive Director
 

Termsof Reference:

a. To make CSRPolicy of the company whichshallindicatethe activities to be undertaken by

the Companyasspecified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

 



b. recommendthe amountof expenditure to be incurred on theactivities referred to in clause

(a) and

c. monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from timeto time.

A detailed report on the CSRinitiatives undertaken by the Companyfor the financial year

ended on March31, 2020is attached and annexed as “Annexure D” and formsa part of this

report.

21.RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN

REMUNERATION OF THE EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR2019-20

 

 

The information required pursuant to section 197 (12) read with Rule 5 (1) (i) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules 2014 in respect of ratio of remuneration

of each director to the median remuneration of the employee of the Company for the

financial year 2019-20 formspart of this report as “Annexure-E”.

22. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, NOMINATION,

REMUNERATION AND FORMAL EVALUATION
 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has, on the

recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for

selection, nomination, appointment and remuneration of Directors suitably containing the

criteria determining qualifications, positive attributes and independenceofa Director.

23. FORMAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL

DIRECTORS
 

The Board has carried out annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the

directors individually as well the evaluation of the working of its Audit Committee,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Shareholders Grievance committee and Corporate

Social Responsibility Committee.

24. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN

THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT
 

 

The Statutory Auditors or Secretarial Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds

to the Audit Committee or to the Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies

Act, 2013, including rules madethere under.



25. MANAGEMENTDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

In Termsof the Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015,

ManagementDiscussion and Analysis report formspart of this Annual Report as “Annexure

F’.

26. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Regulation 15 (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Para C of Schedule V relating to Corporate Governance Report, shall not

apply to companylisted on SME Exchange. The Company being a companylisted on BSE

SMEPlatform, preparation of corporate governanceis not applicable.

27. RISK MANAGEMENT

The companyhasbeen followingthe principle of risk minimizationasit is the norm in every

industry. The Board has adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk

managementplan for the company. The main objectiveof this policy is to ensure sustainable

business growthwith stability and to promote a pro-active approachin reporting, evaluating

and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve the key objective, the

policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to risk management, in order to

guide for decisions on risk related issues. In today’s Challenging and competitive

environment,strategies for mitigating inherentrisk in accomplishing the growth plansof the

company are imperative. The Commonrisks inherent are: Regulations, Competition,

business risk, technology obsolescence, long term investments and expansion of facilities.

Businessrisk, inter alia, includes financialrisk, political risk, legal risk etc., As a matter of

policy, these risk are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

28. DISCLOSURE ON VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for

directors and employees to report genuine concernshas beenestablished, in order to ensure

that the activities of the company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent

manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty and integrity and

ethical behavior. The Companyhasestablished a vigil mechanism through which Directors,

employees and business associates may report unethical behaviour, malpractices, wrongful

conduct, fraud, violation of Company’s code of conduct without fear of reprisal. The

Company has set up a Direct Touch initiative, under which all Directors, employees,

business associates have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit committee, and also to a

three-member direct touch team established for this purpose. The direct touch team



comprises one senior woman member so that women employees of the Companyfeelfree

and secure while lodging their complaints underthe policy.

29.PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY

ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
 

 

29.1 Conservation of Energy:

a. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-The company is putting
continues efforts to reduce the consumption of energy and maximum possible
saving of energy.

b. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:-The

Company has used alternate source of energy, whenever and to the extent
possible.

c. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:- NIL

 

 

 

29.2 Technology Absorption:

a. The effort made towardstechnology absorption:-Nospecific activities have been

done by the Company.
b. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution:-No specific activity has been done by the
Company

c. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned

from the beginningof the financial year:- NA

d. The expenditure incurred on Research & Development:- NIL

 

 

 

 

29.3 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

There was no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo duringthefinancial year as

required by the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

30. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees in the Company drawing remuneration of more than Rs. 8,50,000/-

rupees per month or 1,02,00,000/- rupees per annum,as prescribed in Rule 5 (2) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) AmendmentRules,

2016.



31. SUBSIDARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:
 

Your Companydoesnot have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate company.

32. EVENTS SUBSEQUENTTO THE DATEOF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
 

COVID-19certainly has a negative impact on the growth of the company. The businessof the

companyis affected due to lockdownandvariousrestrictions issued by the Central and State

Government. However, the Companyis taking adequate measuresto copeupin thisdifficult

situation. In view of prevailing CoVID-19situation the Company's revenuefor 1st quarter of

FY 2020-21 is likely to be impacted, hence the managementis under process of revisingits

budgets and estimations. As the businesssituation is very dynamic, the companyisclosely

monitoring it and hopes the same could normalizein near future.

There have been no other material changes and commitments,if any, affecting the financial

position of the Company which have occurred betweenthe end of the Financial yeari.e. 31st

March, 2020, to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of the report, if any,

disclosed in separate respective head.

33. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR

COURTS
 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals

impacting the going concernstatus of the Companyandits future operations.

34. DEPOSITS

During the year, Company has not accepted deposits from the public in terms of the

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any

other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under hence

information regarding outstanding deposits is not required.

35. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
 

The Company has received necessary Declaration from each Independent Directors of the

Companyasper the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act 2013 that they meets

the criteria of Independence laid downinsection 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 read with

the Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rule, 2014 and the

SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.



36. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made

there under and Regulations 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements),

Regulations, 2015, your Companyhastaken necessary steps to makeavailable the facility to its

membersthefacility to exercise their right to vote by Electronic means.

37. DEMATERIALIZATION OF COMPANY'S SHARES
 

Your company has provided the facility to its shareholders for dematerialization of their

shareholding by entering into an agreement with The National Securities Depository Limited

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The ISIN numberallotted to

the companyis (INE426Z01016).

38. SERVICES TO SHAREHOLDERS

All matters relating to transfer/transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates,

payment of dividend, de-materialization and re-materialization of shares and redressal of

investors grievances are carried out by the Company’s RTA i.e. M/s. Big share Services Pvt.

Ltd., Mumbai.

39. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your company has complied with the Secretarial Standard as issued by the Institute of

CompanySecretaries of India.

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors wishto place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contribution

madeby the employeesatall the levels through their dedication hard work and commitment

thereby enabling the Companytoboostits performance during the year underreport.

Your Directors also take this opportunity to place on record the valuable co-operation and

continuous support extended by its valued business associates Practicing Company

Secretary, Auditors, Supplier, Customers, Banks/Financial Institutions, Government

authorities and the shareholders for their continuously reposed confidence in the Company

and look forward to having the same supportin all its future endeavors.



Onbehalf of the Board of Directors

Ratan Kumar Agrawal

(Chairman &ManagingDirector)

DIN:01608584

Date: 27.07.2020

Place: Raipur

Ravi Agrawal

(Wholetime Director)

DIN:01392652
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
4s onthe Financial Year ended on 31/03/2020   
 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of The
‘Companies (Managementand Administration) Rules, 2014]
 

 

 

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

3}| Corporate Identification Number Le3090CT1994PLC008732

jj|Registration Date 1go/i994

jij] Nomeof the Company (rissa Bengal Carrier Ltd

iy)|Category / Sub-Category of the Company CompanyLimited By Shares

v)|Address of the Registered office and Contact Details: _Jiwan Bima Marg, Pandr, Raipur (C.G.) 492001
Phone: 0771-2281311
E-Mail Id: rcipur@obelimited.com
Website: www.obclimited.com

vil] Whether listed company (Yes / No} YES (On BSE SME Platform)

vij|Nome, Address and Contact details of BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Ist Floor, BharatTin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis,

Makwana Read, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059
Tel +91-22-62638200; Fax +91-22-62638299;
E-mail: ipo@bigshareonline.com; Website: www.bigshareonline.com
 

 

nr. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 

|All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total tumoverof the companyshall be stated:-

 

 

  
 

 

 

'. Name and Description of main products/ services NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the
No, company

T TRANSPORTATION 9965 100%

fcxr. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
Si, Nameand Address of the Holding/Subsidiary/Assoctaa Sean CIN a %ol Shares Held Applicable Section 
 

NA 
 

 



 
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN(Equity Share Capital Breakup as % of Total Equity) 

@ Category-wiseShare Holding
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Calagary of share No.of Shares held at the beginning of he year] No. of Shares held at the end of ihe year %
holders Change

during
[Demat [Physical Jfotal of Total [Demat [Physical Jfofal of the Yeor

shares hotal
Isnores

IA Promoters
(indian
Ja) Individual/ HUF 8324100 oO 8324100 39.48% 8324100 oO 8324100 39.48% 0.00%

lb) Central Govt oO oO O 0% oO oO oO 0% 0%

Jc) State Govt ° ° o on o o ° on on
Id) Bodies Corp. oO oO oO 0% oO oO oO 0% 0%

Je} Banks FI o o ° 0% ° o ° on on
Ip) Any Other
|(Director Relative)
i) Individual’ HUF 3213000 oO 3213000 15.24% 3213000 oO 3213000 |15.24% |0.00%
i) Bodies Corp. 1800000 o 1800000 _as4% 2000000 ° 2ooova 9.89% 0.95%

Sub-total (ANT): 13337100 __0 13337100 63.26% 13537100 0 13537100 64.21% 0.95%
[@) Foreign
Ja) NRis - Individuals oO oO oO 0% oO oO oO 0 0%

|b) Other-Individuals 0 0 0 O% oO 0 oO oO 0%

Jc} Bodies Corp. o o 0 o% ° o ° o on
Jd) Banks/ FI oO oO oO 0% oO oO oO oO 0%

Je} AnyOther o o 0 o% 0 0 0 0 on
Sub-total (ANZ: 0 0 0 % a 0 a 0 %

Total shareholding of 13337100 0 13337100 63.26% 0 0 13537100 64.21% 0.95%
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)

+(A)Q2)

5. Public Sharehoiding
1: Institutions

Ja) Mutual Funds oO oO oO 0% oO oO oO 0% 0%

J) Banks/ Fl oO oO oO 0% oO oO oO 0% 0%

Ic} Central Govt ° ° ° 0% ° o ° on on
ld) State Govt{s) 0 0 0 0% o ° o 0% 0%
le) Venture Capital o o ° 0% ° o ° on on
Funds
insurance o o ° 0% ° o ° on on
ICompanies
oyFs o ° ° 0% ° o ° on on
Jn) Foreign Venture 36000 0 36000 0.17% 36000 oO 36000 0.17% 0.00%

Capital Funds &
Foreign Portfolio
lnvestors
li) Others (specify) oO oO oO 0% oO oO oO 0% 0%

Sub-total 36000 0 36000 17% 36000 0 36000 0.17% 0.00%
(8)()

 

            



 

[2: Non- Institutions
 

la) Bodies Corp.

 

 

 

 

  

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

i) Incion 1747902 o |iza7go2 |2.29% |1982000 o ise2000 |9.40% |1.11%
i) Overseas ° 0 ° o% ° ° o oz on
b) Individuals

i) Inaividval 545598 ° sassee |2.59% |555500 ° ssss00 |2.463% |005%
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1
lokn
i individual 3207390 o 3807390 18.08% 3646748 ° 3646743 17.30% -0.76%
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital in excess of
5 1 lakh

|c) Others(specify)

IRUF 888800 ° aase0o |4.22% |628000 ° e2se00 |290% |-1.29%

i Non- Resident 32000 ° 32000 0.15% 32000 ° 32000 0.5% 0.00%
Indian (Non
Repatriable)
jilClearing Member 88000 ° ea000 3.26% o4ea2 ° gsasaz aise 011%

Sub-fofal 7roves0 0 7709690 36.57% 7509690 ° 7s0ve90 35.62% -0.95%
(8)(2):

Total Fubiic 7745690 0 “7745690| 36.74% 7545690 ° TEASE| STIX 09H
Shareholding

(8)=(6)(1}+ (8)(2)
. shares held by a a 0 o% 0 0 0 a oe

|Custodian for GDRs &
ADRS

GrandTotal

(AsB+c) 21082790 0 21082790 100% 21082790 o 21082790 100% 0%

(Shareholding of Promoters (Including Promoters Group)

S| Share holder's Shareholding af the beginning of the year Shareholding atthe end ofthe year
No.| Name

INo- of Shares [of otal] el Shares Pedged / |No. of Shar es] affotal of Shares Pledged 7
shares ot encumbered to total shares shares ofthe encumbered fo total
lthe |company shares \% change
|company Psecre)holding

Jduing he
year

stRI RATAN
1 |RUMAR 2va0400 13.90% NA, 2vao400 13.90% aei% 0.00%

JAGRAWAL
soar

2. |SHAKUNTALA 2essoo 14.07% NA, 2vessoo 1407% 1.86% 0.00%
DEVI AGRAWAL
ISARI MANO!

3 |kumar zazenoo 11.52% NA 228200 11.52% 11.52% 0.00%
AGRAWAL
sar SONAL ; : on4 parsonal 27ois0o 12.82% NA zroieoo 12.82% 12.82% 0.00%

lsyrsuniTa Devi . «s pure 1200 oo NA 1800 001% NA 0.00%

SHI KUMAR & 7 :6 [ese 18000 009% NA, 18000 0.09% NA 0.00%

RR
7 |iverastructure 1800000 asa NA 2000000 9.49% NA 0.95%

Pvt. uD,
MANOS

8 [AGRAWAL & sio00 0.30% NA, 81000 0.30% NA 0.00%
lsons
BANARAS! DEVI . .9 fanaa sioa00 1.95% NA aio| 1.99% NA 0.00%

Total 13337100 63.26% 13537100 64.21% 30.00% 0.95%          



(ii) Changein Promoters’ Shareholding (please specilyif there is no change)
(Reasons for such Change (e.g. Allotment/Transfer/Bonus/Sweat Equity etc)
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

yareholding e Increase/ reasein commuctes]eo masa" |emaesdgia
Si. Shareholders on
No. Name \% of otal Pate Reason eel ete

|the Co. ‘company recomponyCar| _Porchae Saw a1
03072017 Purchase —ate0 a0

we 08072019 Purchase —seoo0 024%
1 INFRASTRUCTURE 1800000 8.54% 08.07.2019) Purchase 12000 0.08% 2000000 9.49%ssiRucy 30072019 Porchose eno 0%

2082017 “Purchase ano 19%
0208 2019 Purchase ato 00
zo.zz0i7 sel 10000 00s

Th] sharaholng PornTTT SRarehoTaes ther thon DictorsWomoers and Wades of GORE and ADR:

Shareholding at the Increase/ Decrease in cumbegining othe year Shavehaidng”_[Seteeldngding he
SL) raters watioar] vate Reason coon EES

No.of shares |shares of No. of shares| shares of the |No. of shares| Snares of
the eo company thecompony

wesw | Purchase wooo
alo620i7| Purchose [2000 ore
ra072017| Sel [4000 0038
ogosz0iF| Purchase [2000 oars
on08201y| sel atao ore

Jameka 30082017 sel —am00 [007%
1 fassoctares es2o00 sor% [outoaoir| Fuchoss 2000 —o0ix—] exsoo0 ase

tired w.iaz01e| sel amo 001%
3.02000 sel atu [07%
Topi 2020 sel [2000 001
Trot at20| set [2000 001%
97002000 sel amo [007%
60.2000 Parchass —atco —00v%
r2042019| Purchase —reooo 008%
03052017| Purchose —1a000_| oe
Toasz0i7| Sel [34000 0168
T7082017| sel [4000 00s
24052017 sel —atuo 005%
3.052019 sel aen00 0.14%
o706z07| Purchase 2000 oars
14062019 Purchase acco 00a
alo6207| Purchose ooo 005%
2062017| Purchose [8000 00a
rao7z0i7| Sel [4000 0a
T9072017| set [10000 0s
oa082017 sel —za00 0.08%
30082017 sel ~2an00 [0.11%
osora01F| Purchase 2000 oor
Ta072019| Purchase —seoo0 026%
aoor201F| Purchose [0 030
aron2017| Purchose [6000 003%
oa0z01F| Purchose [2000] oar
TH T0201 Purchose —Teooo 00s

2 |ammsecurmes 224000 2208 [istoaiv| purchase [woo] cin 276000 22s
as1oz01y| Purchose [4000] ooze
aLraoie| sel ea0o] on
zaiiaoiy| sel] —saan0] “07%
wiizoie| set [awe] 000%
zo.1a2019| sel] aeob0] “019%
ariazoie| Prchows [4000] oar
go 2000| Sel] —ateo] 004
Toor zeao| sei [20000] rex
Trot at20| set [36000] 18x
24012000 sel aoat00] 08%
Biol 2000] Prchows| 4000] ooze           



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
  

flor

sfuivay aco ore [2290 Parca “asto0o 0F6% sosoy zie
PRIVATE LIMITED ROSE 1 4

s PRIVATE LIMITED 240000 1.14% - - - 7 240000, 1.14%

§ |pRIVATE LIMITED ° 0.00% Tig102019 |Purchase |32000 0.15% 224000 |1.06%

8 RUHI RAVINDER 189000, 0.90% 24.01.2020 Purchase 26000 0.12% 215000 1.02%vrs

° )VINCOM LIMITED) 72000 034% 14.02.2020 Purchase” 44000 0.21% 192000 09t% KATARIA (HUF)           



(V) Shareholding ofDirectors and Key Managerial Personnel:
(Reasons for such Change (e.g. Allotment/Transfer/Bonus/Sweat Equity etc)
 

si For Each of the
Directors and

KMP

Shareholding atthe
beginning of the year Increase/
 

No.of shares

[% of total
Ishares of
lthe co

(Decrease)
in share
holding

Date Reason

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year
 

INo.of shares

of total shares of
the company

 

DIRECTORS.

 

[SHRI RATAN
KUMAR
JAGRAWAL
(MANAGING
DIRECTOR)

2930400 18.88% - No Change 2930400 13.90%

 

[Saar
ISHAKUNTALA
DEVI AGRAWAL
(DIRECTOR)

2965500 19.11%, - No Change 2965500 14.07%,

 

[SHRI MANOJ
KUMAR
JAGRAWAL
(WHOLETIME
DIRECTOR)

2428200 15.65% - No Change 2428200 11.52%,

 

[SHRI RAVI
AGRAWAL
(WHOLETIME
DIRECTOR)

0.00% - No Change 0.00%

 

ISHRI SAHIL BATRA
INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)

0.00% - No Change 0.00%

 

[SHRI RAJ KUMAR
Jai
(INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)

0.00% - No Change 0.00%

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 

[SHRI AKSHAY
JAGRAWAL
(CHIEF
FINANCIAL
JOFFICER)

0.00% - No Change 0.00%

  [SHRI AAKASH
KUMAR SAHU
(COMPANY
ISECRETARY)  0.00% - No Change     0.00%

 
 



 

Ww] INDEBTEDNESS
 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but notduefor payment
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposils Total indebledness
excluding deposits

Indebtedness af the beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount 273751690 3178144 0 278929834
i) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
ii) interest accruedbut not 0 o 0 o
due

Total (#ii#iil) 273751690 3178144 0 276929634

[Change in Indebtedness during
Ithe financial year

‘Adaiion 60295014 8649270 0 68944284
Reduction 62732510 5565381 0 68297891

Net Change -2A37AY 3083889 ° 46393,
Indebtedness atthe end ofthe
linancial year

i) Principal Amount 271314194 6262033 0 277576227
i) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
ii) Interest accrued but not due ° ° 0 °

Total (i+ii+ili) 2VS1AT94 6262033 0 277576227
 

 

pe] REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
 

‘A. Remunerationto ManagingDirector, Whole-fime Directors and/or Manager:
 

 

 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

     
se Parivar of Remuneration Name of Drector Total Amount

RATAN] MANOJ] RAVIAGRAWAL Wid
kumar KUMAR

AGRAWAL AGRAWAL
MD wid

1 [Sresssalany,
(0) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)Sane intormocten Act 1961 gzoce00 1700000 21c0000 70000
(b] Valveof perquisites vs 17(2) ncome-tax Act1961 TA TA

|(c) Profits in lieu of salary undersection 17(3) Income-[axa1961 ‘ NA NA
2 |stock Option Wa Wa
3 [sweat Eqully WA WA
4 Commission

Fos % ofprof WA WR
- others, specity WAL WA

5 |Others,please speciy NA WA
Total(A) 3300000, 1700000 2100000 7100000,
 

 

 



Remuneration to other Directors:
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
  

ie Particulars of Remuneration NameofDirector Total Amount
‘SHAKUNTALA DEVI AGRAWAL

T [Gross salary
{a} Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
lof the Income-tax Act,1961 00000 00000
(b) Valueof perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act.1961 NAL NAL

(c} Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961 NA NA

2. |stock Option WA WA
3 [Sweat Equity NA NA
4 [Commission

|. as % of profit NA NA
|. others, specity, NA NA

5 Others, please specify NA NA.
Total (8) 800000 8000007

¢._ Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager/WTD
Si.a Particulars of Remuneration KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL Total Amount

"AKSHAY AGRAWAL(CFO) AAKASH KUMAR SAHU
(cs)

T [Gross salary
{a} Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)
lof the Income-tax Act,1961 roma ‘ssn004 950004
(b) Valueof perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act.1961 NAL NA NAL

(c} Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961 NA NA NA

2 |stock Option WA NA WA
3 [Sweat Equity NA NA NA
4 [Commission

- as % of profit NA NA NA
- others, specity NA NA NA

5 Others, please specify NA NA NA
Total(C) 000007 350004 950008      



 
zz] PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Section of Details of Penaily
the /Punishment/ Authority IRD/NCLT/ Appeal made.it

oe ICompanies Sef Pescription Compounding fees Court] any (give Details)
lAct imposed

‘A. COMPANY
Penally NA NA NAL NA NA.

Punishment NA NA. NA. NA NA.
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA

B, DIRECTORS
Penally NA NA NAL NA NA.

Punishment NA NA. NA. NA NA.
Compounding NA NA‘ NA NA NA.

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penally NA NA NA NA NA.

Punishment NA NA. NA. NA NA.
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA        

FOR AND ONBEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ratan Kumar Agrawal Ravi Agrawal
(Chairman & Managing Director) (Wholetime Director)
DIN: 01608584 DIN: 01392652  
PLACE RAIPUR
DATE 27.07.2020



“Annexure-B”

Form AOC-2

(Pursuantto Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company

with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

includingcertain armslength transaction underthird provisothereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangementsor transactions at not Arm’s lengthbasis.

Notapplicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangementsor transactions at Arm’s length

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

basis.

Nameof Nature of Nature of Duration Salient termsof Date of Amount

Related Relationship contracts of the the contracts or approval paid as

Party Jarrangements/ contracts/a arrangements or by the advances,

: rrangemen transaction Board, if if any

transactions ts/transacti including the any

on value, if any

Ratan Director GodownRent Annual Rs 8,40,000/- NA NIL

Kumar

Agrawal

Ratan Director Director Annual Rs 33,00,000/- NA NIL

Kumar Remuneration

Agrawal

Ratan Director Interest Paid Annual Rs. 2,91,148/- NA NIL

Kumar

Agrawal

Shakuntala Director Director Annual Rs 8,00,000/- NA NIL

Devi Remuneration

Agrawal

Manoj Director Director Annual Rs 17,00,000/- NA NIL

Kumar Remuneration

Agrawal

Manoj Director Interest Paid Annual Rs 3,33,441/- NA NIL

Kumar

Agrawal         



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Manoj Director Freight Paid Annual Rs 46,54,855/- NA NIL

Kumar

Agrawal

Ravi Director Director Annual Rs 21,00,000/- NA NIL

Agrawal Remuneration

Subhash Relative of Salary Annual Rs 7,20,000/- NA NIL

Mittal Director

Kapil Mittal Relative of Salary Annual Rs 2,70,000/- NA NIL

Director

Akshay Relative of Salary Annual Rs 6,00,000/- NA NIL

Agrawal Director

Banarasi Relative of Rent Annual Rs 3,60,000/- NA NIL

Devi Director

Agrawal

Banarasi Relative of Freight Paid Annual Rs 6,07,968/- NA NIL

Devi Director

Agrawal

Sonal Relative of Salary Annual Rs 6,00,000/- NA NIL

Agrawal Director

Ashok Relative of Freight Annual Rs 41,36,401/- NA NIL

Kumar Director Received

Agrawal

Ashok Relative of Freight Paid Annual Rs 5,37,15,604/- NA NIL

Kumar Director

Agrawal

Rishi Relative of Purchase of Annual Rs 1,14,87,450/- NA NIL

Kumar & Director Parts

Sons

Ravi Relative of Freight Paid Annual Rs 3,42,578/- NA NIL

Agrawal Director

HUF

Ashok Relative of Freight Paid Annual Rs 3,08,631/- NA NIL

Kumar & Director

Sons         



Note:

The abovetransactions were on an arm’slength basis and in ordinary course of business.

Onbehalf of the Board of Directors

Ratan Kumar Agrawal Ravi Agrawal

(Chairman & Managing Director) (Wholetime Director)

DIN:01608584 DIN:01392652

Date: 27.07.2020

Place: Raipur



ANILAGRAWAL & ASSOCIATES Royal 105, GT Exotica, Opp. T.V. Tower
COMPANYSECRETARIES ShankarNagar,Raipur(C.G.)-492001

e-mail:- csanilagr@gmail.com

Contact No.-9039251026/9575111112
 

FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED315March, 2020
[Pursuantto section 204(1) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
 

To,

The Members,

ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD

CIN: L63090CT1994PLC008732

Jiwan Bima Marg,Pandri, Raipur (C.G)-492001

Wehave conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by ORISSA BENGAL
CARRIER LTD (CIN:L63090CT1994PLC008732) (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a mannerthat provided a reasonablebasis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinionthere on.

Based on ourverification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms

and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company andalso the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the companyhas, during the audit period covering the Financial year
ended on 31% March, 2020(‘Audit Period’), complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting madehereinafter:

Wehave examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returnsfiled and

other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31s
March,2020 accordingto the provisions of:-

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules madethere under.

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
there under.

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under.

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.



5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations,1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and

dealing withclient;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations,2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period).

6. The Companyhasidentified the following lawsasspecifically applicable to the
Company:

wp
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Carriage by Road Act, 2007

MotorVehicles Act, 1988

Payment of Wages Act,1936

Employee's State Insurance Act, 1948

Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Paymentof Bonus Act, 1965

Paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972

Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006

The Motor Transport Workers Act,1961



We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of

India.

b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s).

Wefurther report:

The Board of Directors of the Companyis duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
There were no changesin the composition of the Board of Directors during the
period underreview.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agendaand detailed notes on agenda weresentat least seven days in advance
or at shorter period as approved by board, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information andclarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningfulparticipation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are
captured andrecordedaspart of the minutes.

Wefurther report that based on the written representations received from the
officials/executives of the Company there are adequate systems and processes in
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

Wefurther report that during the Audit Period, the Stock Exchange has not
undertaken any major step having a major bearing onits affairs in pursuance of
the above-referredlaws,rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc

For, Anil Agrawal and Associates

(CompanySecretaries)

Anil Kumar Agrawal
Place: Raipur Partner
Date: 27.07.2020 FCS No.: 8828

CP No.: 9981
UDIN: F008828B000507755

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
‘ANNEXUREA’and formsanintegral part of this report.



To

‘ANNEXUREA’

The Members
ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD

CIN: L63090CT1994PLC008732
Jiwan Bima Marg,Pandri, Raipur (C.G)-492001

Ourreportof evendateis to be read along with thisletter.

1. Maintenanceof secretarial record is the responsibility of the managementof the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion onthesesecretarial records
based on ouraudit.

Wehavefollowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed providea reasonablebasis for our opinion.

Wehavenot verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial laws, like
direct tax laws, indirect tax laws, since the sameis subject to review by statutory
financial audit and other designated professionals.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Managementrepresentation about the

complianceof laws, rules and regulations and happeningof events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws,rules,
regulations, standardsis the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of proceduresontestbasis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assuranceas to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Anil Agrawal and Associates

(CompanySecretaries)

Anil Kumar Agrawal
Place: Raipur Partner
Date: 27.07.2020 FCS No.: 8828

CP No.: 9981



“Annexure D”

Detailed Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

1. Note on CSRPolicy

The Board of Directors of the Company had adopted the CSR policy. CSR committee is

responsible for formulating and monitoring the CSR policy of the Company.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

Your Companyhas a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which is comprised of the

followingdirectors:

¢ Shri Sahil Batra~ Chairman

*¢ Shri Raj Kumar Jain- Member

* Smt Shakuntala Devi Agrawal- Member

3. Average NetProfit of the Companyforlast 3 financial years

The averagenet profits of the Company during the last three years is Rs 10,17,62,447/-

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2%of this amountas in Item 3 above)

The prescribed amount to be spent on CSR wasRs. 20,35,250/- which is equivalent to 2% of

the averagenetprofits for last three years.

5. Details of CSR spent duringthefinancial year

Total amount spent for the financial year: During the financial year the Company was unable to

spend any amount ofCSR till 31st March, 2020 butthereafter the Companyhasstarted to spend the

unspent amount towards the CSRactivities for which the details have mentioned below.

Amountunspent,if any: 20,35,250/-

Mannerin which the amountspent during the financial yearis detailed below:

 

S.No.) CSR Project Sector In Projects Or Amount Outlay Amount Spent

Or Activity Which The Programs 1) (Budget) Project On The

Identified Project Is Local Area Or Or Program Projects Or

Covered 2) Specify The Wise Programs

Date And

District Where

Projects Or

Programs Ws

Undertaken     
  N.A.  
 



6. In case the Companyhasfailed to spend the two percentof the averagenetprofit of the
last three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for
not spending the amountin its Board of Director's report:- The Company waslooking for
the sectors in which they spend CSR amount. As weall aware that from March 2020
onwards, whole country is facing pandemic COVID-19 virus, therefore Company had
decided to spend the CSR amount in the related sectors. Accordingly Company had
identified the sector and also spent an amountof Rs 20,68,000/- till the date of signing Board
Report. The Company had spent the unspent CSR amountin eradicating hunger, poverty
and malnutrition.

Wehereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance with

CSRobjectives and policy of the Company.

Sahil Batra Raj KumarJain

(Chairman- CSR Committee) (Member)

DIN: 06422459 DIN: 08015385

Date: 27.07.2020

Place: Raipur



“Annexure-E”

Particulars pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(A) The ratio of remuneration of each Name Ratio
director to the median remuneration of Shri Ratan Kumar| 27.86
the employees of the company for the Agrawal (MD)

financial year; Shri Ravi Agrawal| 17.73

(WTD)
Shri Manoj Kumar| 14.35

Agrawal (WTD)

Smt Shakuntala 6.75
Devi Agrawal

(Director)
(B) The percentage increase in| Name PercentageIncrease
remuneration of each director, Chief Shri Ratan Kumar 33.33%

Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Agrawal(MD)

Company Secretary or Manager, in any, [Ghyi Ravi ‘Agrawal| 60%
in the financial year; (WTD)

Shri Manoj Kumar| 20%
Agrawal (WTD)

Smt Shakuntala 50%
Devi Agrawal

(Director)
Shri Akshay 0%

Agrawal (CFO)

Shri Aakash Sahu 0%

(CS)    
(C) The percentage increase in the
median remuneration of employees in
the financial year;

1%

 

(D) The number of permanent employees
(Other than Directors and KMP) on the
rolls of the company

107 as on 31st March 2020.

 

(E) Averagepercentile increase already

madein the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in thelast
financial year and its comparison with

the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof
and pointoutif there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration;

The Remuneration/Salary of the Key

Managerial personnel and employees has
been increased during the year as given
in the above point no B and C. Due to

pandemic COVID-19 virus prevailing in
the whole country, the Company last
quarter turnover and accordingly profit is
also affected. As compare to last year
company's turnover has been decreased
by 20% and company's Profit After Tax
has also been decreased by 12.5%.
  (F)The Key parameters for any variable  Thereis no variable componentin the
  



 

component of remuneration availed by remuneration of director

the directors;
 

(H) The ratio of the remuneration of the N.A.
highest paid Director to that of the
Employees who are not Directors but
receive remuneration in excess of the
highest paid Director during the year  
  Weaffirm that the remunerationis as per the remunerationpolicy of the company
 

 



“Annexure-F”

ManagementDiscussion and Analysis Report 

Industry Structure and Developments:

Our Company wasoriginally incorporated on October 18, 1994 as Orissa Bengal Carrier

Private Limited under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 with Registrar of Companies,

MadhyaPradesh, Gwalior. Our Company wasconverted into a Public Limited Company on

November 05, 2009 and the name of our Company was changed to “Orissa Bengal Carrier

Limited” vide a fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated December 09, 2009, issued by the

Registrar of Companies, Madhya Pradesh and Chhattisgarh, Raipur. Our Company is

engaged in Transportation & Logistics Business and has completed more than 24 years since

incorporation.

Weare oneofthe logistics company headquartered at Raipur, Chhattisgarh, serving a broad

range of industries, including the steel, coal, aluminum, cement, petrochemicals, paper,

marble,tiles, infra, textile, FMCG. The various types of services provided by usinclude: Full

Truck Load Transport Services, Parcel and Part Truck Load Services/ less than Truck Load

(LTL). The main business activity of our company is Full Truck Load Transport service

wherein wedotransport the consignmentbyroadall overIndia.

Weare oneof the IBA approved transporter having ISO 9001:2015certification for provision

of Quality Management System Service. Our registered office is located at Jiwan Bima Marg,

Pandri, Raipur, Chhattisgarh, India. Pin code - 492001. Our Corporateoffice situated at A1,

3rd Floor C.G. Elite complex, Opposite Mandi Gate, Vidhan Sabha Road, Pandri, Raipur-

492001.

Our Promoter, Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawalplaysa crucialrole in the Administration & Fleet

Management of our Company and operates from our Headoffice. He has experience of

around 25 years in transport and logistics industry and did his matriculation from Haryana

Board in the year 1972. He has been Director of our Companysince incorporation. Our

Company is also promoted by Smt. Shakuntala Devi Agrawal, wife of Shri Ratan Kumar

Agrawal. She joined our companysince incorporation and involved in all day to day

activities of our Company. Later on Shri Manoj Kumar AgrawalBrotherof Shri Ratan Kumar

Agrawaljoined our Company. Hehas an experience of more than 21 years in transport and

logistics industry. He has been instrumental in the growth andstrategy of our business. He

currently looksafter the operation of Western Region of India from ouroffice at Nagpur. He

is an expert in humanresources and humanrelations. He has been on the board since April

7, 1997. Recently Mr Ravi Agrawalalso joined the Company as a WholetimeDirector of the

Company.Heis a Masterin International Business and a commerce graduate Candidate and

having morethan 12 years experiencein the field of Accounts, Finance & marketing.



Wealso provide services by vehicles hired by us to provide timely and quality services to

ourclients. The variety of goods transportation vehicles in our fleet and vehicles hired by us

also enables us to serve a diverse mix of consignments. Our managementbelieves that the

operations with market fleet are more covenants to operate which improvetheefficiency and

also reduces the operationalcost of the Company.

Webelieve that our management team’s experience and their understanding of our business

and industry will enable us to continue to take advantage of both current and future market

opportunities. Our experience together with our consistent and successful track record of

timely delivery and customer satisfaction provides us a competitive edge.

Opportunities & Strength:

Rich and Diversified CustomerBase.

Established Marketing Setup.
Quality of Services.
Strategic Location.
Vast area of Operation.

Threats & Risks:

Vv Changes in Governmentor Regulatory Policies.
Changes in Economic Growth.

Changesin Physical Infrastructure.
Changinglaws, rules and regulations andlegal uncertainties.
Probability of downgradingof India’s debt rating.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy:

There is an adequateinternal control procedures commensurate withthe size of the company

and nature of the business for inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goodsor services.

The Company has implemented proper and adequate systems of internal control to ensure

that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from any authorized use or

disposition andall transactionsare authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The system

ensures appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring. The internal audit

system also ensures formation and implementation of corporate policies for financial,

reporting, accounting and informationsecurity.

The companyhasconstituted Audit committee to overlook the internal control systems and

their adequacy. Audit committee regularly reviews and gives recommendations on proper

and adequateinternal control systems.



Financial performance:

During the Year under review, Your Companyhasrecorded Revenue from Operation of Rs.

38897.68 Lacs and NetProfit after Tax of Rs. 930.23 Lacs as comparedto previousyearof Rs.

48831.30 Lacs and Rs. 1063.55 Lacs respectively. The percentage of profit before tax on the

basis of revenue from operations for the year 2019-20 is 3.18 as comparedtothelast year 3.06

which highlights the intention and focus of the Company on maximisation ofprofit.

During the year the Companycould notparticipate in the transport operations in the region

of Jajpur, Vishakhapatnam andBarbil due to the reason of severe competition which wasnot

even cost effective. Moreover the transport opportunities were winded upin the region of

Paradeep. Further keeping in mind the situation of Covid-19 pandemic and disturbed

transport industry, the Company is looking forward to get itself registered with some

untouched sectors of transport industry in order to get the transport opportunities to

improveits revenue. Further the Company is under the developmentof software intending

to make an online platform to get more than 10,000 commercial transportvehiclesto getitself

registered with the Company which will result into the boost in the operations of the

Companyand to be more competentin the transport industry.

Your directorsare in the view that the companyhassignalled good business after lockdown

in the transport industry in the long run and look forward to access the path of success in

succeeding financial years and are hopeful for the bright future prospects. It is also assured

that the Managementwill leave no efforts untouchedto increase the profitability in the forth

comingyearsalso.

Our Employees:

Webelieve that a motivated and empowered employee base is key to our operations and

business strategy, and have developed a large pool of skilled and experienced personnel. As

of March 31, 2020 we have 107 employees excluding Directors & KMP, whoare based at

different locations across the country. Our administrative employees play an importantrole

in our centralized support services such as load planning, accounting, information

technology, marketing and humanresource functions. We have developed a decentralized

senior managementstructure in order to ensure timely decision making whichis key to our

operations. The recruitment, training and retention of qualified drivers are essential to our

growth andto meetthe service requirements of our customers.

We also provide our drivers with comfortable equipment, effective training, direct

communication channels with senior management, competitive incentives based on distance

travelled, fuel efficiencies and timely delivery and / or route schedules. Drivers also receive

awardsfor providing superior service and developingsatisfactory safety records.



Cautionary statements:

All statements made in Management and Discussion Analysis has been madein goodfaith.

Many unforeseen factors may come into play and affect the actual results, which may be

different from what the managementenvisages in terms of performance and outlook. Factors

such as economic conditions affecting demand/supply and priced conditions in domestic

markets in which the company operates, and changes in governmentregulations, tax laws,

other statues and otherincidental factors, mayaffect the final results and performance of the

Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

 

To the Members of Orissa Bengal Carriers limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Wehave audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ORISSA

BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance

Sheet as at March 31, 2020,and the Statementof Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow

Statementfor the year then ended, and a summaryofthe significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the

information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting principles generally

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Companyas at March 31,

2020,its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended onthatdate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance

with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of

our report. We are independent of the Companyin accordance with the Code of

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there

under, and wehavefulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the standalonefinancial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of

mostsignificance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have

determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be

communicated in our report.
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A) Revenue Recogn

 

 

The Key Audit Matter How the matter addressed in our audit
 

Completeness of revenue
recognizedfor service rendered:

The Company engaged in providing
transportation services (Full truck
load) through company owned fleet
and external fleet to the customers
throughout India. The Company
recognizes “Revenue” from rendering
of services and the related liability
towards its venders only upon receipt
of customer acknowledged proof of
completion of services.

Whilst the Company is able to track
the physical consignments and
location of each shipment through
ownfleet by using GPS and software
and for external fleet through the fleet
owner_, the details of each shipment
showing inter-alia its start date,
delivery date, date of receiving the
proof of delivery (POD) and date of
recording revenue is recorded
electronically in accounting software
(electronic form).

Management ensures satisfaction of
the performance obligation at the
reporting date and completeness and
accuracy of data entered
electronically, which is basis of
recording of costs and_ related
revenues. Since the management
ensures accuracy and completeness of
performance obligation electronically,
recognition of revenue related to
transportation service business is
considered a_ key audit matter.  

Our audit procedure include:

We have tested the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of internal controls
over judgment exercised over the following as
well as their operating effectiveness:

a. Determination of performanceobligations,
transaction price and the allocation
thereof.

b. Control over the determination of the
estimates used as well as their operating
effectiveness.

Wehavetested the relevant controls relating
to contracts and related information used in
recording and disclosing revenue in
accordance with the revenue accounting
standard.

We have tested relevant controls related to
recognition of revenue, to ensure that accrual
of revenue is made for each completed
service.

We obtained, on sample basis, direct
confirmation from Vendors and customers for
outstanding balances.

We also performed substantive testing by
selecting samples of revenue transactions
recorded during the year by verifying the
underlying documents, which included goods
dispatch notes and shipping documents.

Wehavealso tested samples of direct costs to
ensure that all expenses have corresponding
revenue by verifying the consignment
note/date of receiving the proof of delivery
(POD).
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B) We draw your attention to Note 33 to these financial statements, which
describes the Management's assessment of the impact of COVID-19
pandemic and the resultant lockdowns on the significant uncertainties
involved in developing some of the estimates involved in preparation of the
financial statements. Based on information available as of this date,
Management believes that no further adjustments are required to the
financial results. However, in view of the highly uncertain economic
environment impacting the Logistics industry, a definitive assessment of the
impact is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve in future and
the actual results maydiffer from those estimated as at the date of approval
of these financial statements.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in

Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the

preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements to give a

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows

of the Companyin accordancewith the accounting principles generally accepted

in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgementss

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalonefinancial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of

Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless managementeither intends

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Board of Director’s are also responsible for overseeing the Company's

financial reporting process.
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of the Standalone   Auditor’s Respon y for the Aud
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe standalone

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wealso:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible

for expressing our opinion on whether the Companyhas adequate internal

financial controls with reference to standalonefinancial statementin place

and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

maycast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
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obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a mannerthat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Companysofar as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
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refer to our separate Report in Annexure A. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended: In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Companyto its
directors during the yearis in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordancewith Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge andbelief and according to
the information and explanations given to us:

i. The Company hasdisclosed the impact, if any, of pendinglitigations as at
March 31, 2020 onits financial position in its financial statements - Refer
Note 31;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2020;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year
ended March 31, 2020;

2. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016’, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure B a statementon the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

For AGRAWAL & PANSARI.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.:- 003350C.

Place: Raipur CA SANSKAR AGRAWAL
Date: 27/07/2020. (Partner)

Membership No.:429385.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report to the members of ORISSA BENGAL
CARRIERLIMITEDofevendate)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under clause
(i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act)

Wehave audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Orissa
Bengal Carrier Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required underthe Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatementof the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system overfinancial reporting.

MeaningofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposesin
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

InherentLimitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper managementoverride
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
overfinancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
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In our opinion, the Companyhas,in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Companyconsidering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AGRAWAL & PANSARI.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration no.:- 003350C.

Place: Raipur CA SANSKAR AGRAWAL
Date: 27/07/2020. (Partner)

Membership No.:429385.

5.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements”section of our report of even date.)

i. In respect of the Company’s Fixed assets
(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a programmeofverification to cover all the
items of fixed assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company andthe nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain fixed assets were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
werenoticed on suchverification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
records examined by us and based on the examination of the
conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of land and building which are
freehold, are held in the name of Company as at the Balance Sheet
date.

ii. The Companyis in the business of providing transport services and
does not have any physically inventories. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us the Company has not granted
unsecured loan, to any company covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act. The Company has not granted any
secured/ unsecured loans to firms/ LLPs/ other parties covered in the
said register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, and the records of the Company examined by us the Company
has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in
respect of any loans to any party covered under Section 185 of the Act.

ve The company has notaccepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder to the extent notified. In our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 or anyother relevant
provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent
notified, with regard to the deposits accepted from the public prior to
the commencement of the Act. According to the information and
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explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bankof India
or any Court or any other Tribunal on the Companyin respect of the
aforesaid deposits.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined byus, in our opinion, the Company
is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect
of service tax and value added tax, Goods and Service Tax though there
has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, duty of customs , duty of excise, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, there were no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2020 for a period of more than
six months from the date they becomepayable.

viii. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the management, weare of the opinion
that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowingsto a financial institution or bank.

ix. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Companycarried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither comeacross any instance of material fraud
by the Company or on the Company byits officers or employees,
noticed or reported during the period, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the management.

xX. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in
accordancewith the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xi. As the Companyis not a Nidhi Companyand the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are
not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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xii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in
compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The
details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18,
Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

xiii. During the year, the Company has not madeanypreferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible
debentures and hence reporting underclause 3 (xiv) of the Orderis not
applicable to the Company.

xiv. The Company has notentered into any non-cashtransactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. The Companyis not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For AGRAWAL & PANSARI.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration no.:- 003350C.

Place: Raipur CA SANSKAR AGRAWAL
Date: 27/07/2020. (Partner)

Membership No.:429385.



ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED
(CIN:L63090CTI994PLC008732)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020
 

(Amountin Rs.)
 

PARTICULARS

 

 
II.

 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

(a) Sharecapital
(b) Reserves and surplus
(c) Moneyreceived against share warrants

Share application moneypending allotment

 

Non-currentliabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferredtax liabilities (Net)
(c) OtherLongterm liabilities
(d) Long-term provisions

 Currentliabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Othercurrent liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions

TOTAL

ASSETS
Non-currentassets
(a) Property Plant and Equipment

(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(ili) Capital work-in-progress
(iv) Intangible assets under development

(b) Non-current investments
(c) Deferred tax assets(net)
(d) Long-term loans and advances
(e) Other non-current assets

Current assets

(a) Current investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Tradereceivables
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f) Other current assets

TOTAL

Significant Accounting Polocies
The accompanying notesform anintegral part
lof the Financial Statements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note Figuresas atthe Figures asat the
No. endof end of

31st March'20 31st March'19

3 210,827,900 210,827,900
4 483,158,187 402,846,726

693,986,087 613,674,626

5 82,503,284 112,247,786
6 3,291,983 5,106,615

85,795,267 117,354,401

7 136,805,234 105,074,220
8 122,389,374 217,523,523
9 58,267,709 59,607,827
10 34,274,616 45,767,234

351,736,933 427,972,804
1,131,518,287 7,159,001,831

qt 135,445,566 160,564,523

qt 3,073,083 -

12 22,609,502 23,216,372
13 - -

161,128,151 183,780,895

14 891,914,286 904,594,717
15 19,027,002 19,546,730
16 59,448,848 50,624,846
17 = 454,643

970,390,136 975,220,936
1,131,518,287 7,159,001,831

2
3 to 36    

Asperourreportof even date attached

For,A‘
Firm
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

GRAWAL& PANSARI
Registration No.-003350C.

CASanskar Agrawal
Partn
(M.No.- 429385)
PLACE : RAIPUR
DATE
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27/07/2020

Sd/-
RATAN KUMAR AGRAWAL
(Managing Director)
DIN: 01608584

sd/-
Akshay Agrawal
(Chief Finance Officer)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Sd/-
RAVI AGRAWAL
(Wholetime Director)
DIN: 01392652

Sd/-
Aakash Kumar Sahu
(CompanySecretary
& ComplianceOfficer)
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED 
(CIN:L63090CTI994PLC008732)

PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
(Amountin Rs.)
 

 

 

Note Figures as atthe Figures as at the
PARTICULARS No. end of end of

31st March'20 31st March'19

I. |Revenuefrom operations:
Gross Incomefrom Transportation Business 18 3,889,768,094 4,883,129,524

11. [otherincome 19 14,212,499 17,506,333

IIL. |Total Revenue (I + IT) 3,903,980,593 4,900,635,857

IV. |Expenses:
Gross Transportation Expenses 20 3,617,557,024 4,582,477,895,
Employee Benefits Expenses 21 29,569,263 27,652,904
Finance costs 22 28,626,536 26,046,759
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 23 52,599,850 52,197,860
Other expenses 24 52,104,096 62,697,410

3,780,456,769 4,751,072,828
v. |Profit before Exceptional & Extra-ordinary

Items & tax (III- IV) 123,523,824 149,563,029
VI. ]Exceptional Items (Dividend) - -

VIL. [Profit before Extra-ordinary Items & tax (V- VI) 123,523,824 149,563,029

VIII.JeExtra-Ordinary Items - -

IX. [PROFIT BEFORETAX (VII-VIII) 123,523,824 149,563,029

x. [TAX EXPENSE:
(1) Current yeartax 32,318,785 44,482,303
(2) Deferred tax Liability /(Asset) (1,814,632) (1,273,594)
(3) Earlier Year Income Tax - :

XI.|Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing 93,019,671 106,354,320
operations (after tax) (IX-X)

XII. Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations - -

XIII. |Tax expenseof discontinuing operations - -

XIV.|Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing = =
operations (after tax) (XII-XIII)

XvV.|Profit (Loss)for the period (XI + XIV) 93,019,671 106,354,320

XVI.|Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 441 5.04
(2) Diluted 4.41 5.04

Significant Accounting Polocies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part 3 to 36
lof the Financial Statements.  
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Sd/-
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(CIN:L63090CTI994PLC008732)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2020 
(Amountin Rs.)
 

PARTICULAR Figures as at the
end of

31st March'20

Figures as at the
endof

31st March'19 
A. Cash Flow from Operating A ies

Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items
Adjustments For :

Depreciation
Interest & Finance Charges
Interest Income
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets  

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments For:
(Increase) / Decrease in CurrentAssets :

Sundry Debtors
Inventories
Loans and Advances
OtherCurrent Assets
Long Term Loans & Advances
Othernoncurrent assets

Increase / (Decrease) in CurrentLiablities :
Trade & Other Payables

123,523,824 149,563,029

52,599,850 52,197,860
28,626,536 26,046,759
(2,902,744) (1,085,520)
(2,002,972) (2,860,456)

199,844,494 223,861,672

12,680,431 (83,908,820)

(8,824,002) (8,817,568)
454,643 (374,579)|
606,870 (544,436)|

- 3,247,255

(107,966,885) (109,356,816) 

 

Cash generation from Operations 96,795,551 24,106,708
IncomeTax(Paid) (32,318,785) (44,482,303)

Net Cash Used in Operating Acti 64,476,766 (20,375,595)

 

 

 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchaseof Fixed Assets
Purchase of Investment

(31,422,004) (54,103,623)

 
 

Sale of Fixed Assets 2,871,000 5,375,000
Interest Income 2,902,744 1,085,520
Other non-currentassets = -

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (25,648,260) (47,643,103)

IC. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Share capital - 55,640,000
Security Premium Account - 102,598,209
Long-term borrowings (29,744,502) (57,742,123)
Short-term borrowings 31,731,014 (5,336,893)
Interest & Finance Charges Paid
Dividend Paid

(28,626,536)
(10,541,395)

(26,046,759)

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 

   
Dividend Distributation Tax (2,166,815) -

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C ) (39,348,234) 69,112,434

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (519,728) 1,093,736
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at opening 19,546,730 18,452,994
[Cash Cash Equivalents asat Closing 15,027,002 15,546,730

[Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand 3,684,685 2,826,971
Balances with Bank 15,342,317 16,719,759

19,027,002 19,546,730
Not
The Cash Flow Statement has beenprepared underthe "Indirect Method"as set out in Accounting
Standard - 3 on Cash Flow Statementissued bythe Institute of Chartered AccountantsofIndia

Asperourreport of even date attached For and onbehalfof the BoardofDirectors.

For,AGRAWAL & PANSARI
Firm Registration No.-003350C. Sd/-
Chartered Accountants RATAN KUMAR AGRAWAL

(Managing Director)
DIN: 01608584

Sd/-
CA Sanskar Agrawal
Partner Sd/-
(M.No.- 429385) Akshay Agrawal
PLACE: RAIPUR (Chief FinanceOfficer)
DATE 27/07/2020
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

1 Corporate Information:

2

a.

b.

s

(c)

o
¢

(0)

s

(E)

s

F)

Orissa Bengal Carrier Limited is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated underthe provisions of the Companies
Act,1956. The companyis engagedin Transportation activities. The Companygotlisted with BSE Limited on SME platform on April
05, 2018.

 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") in India underthehistorical cost convention on an accrual basis, and in conformity with mandatory accounting standards,
as prescribed under section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013,further amended by Companies Accounting Standards (Amendment)
Rules 2016, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation offinancial statements are consistent with those of previous year unless
otherwise specified.

Use of Estimates:
Thepreparation of financial statementsin confirmity with generally accepted accountingprinciples (GAAP) requires managementto
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income, expenses and
disclosuresof contingentliabilities at the date of the financial statements.Although these estimates are based upon management's
best knowledgeofcurrent events and actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue/ Income and Cost/ Expenditure are generally accounted for on accrual as they are earned or incurred except
significant uncertainties;
Claims received and deduction is accountedfor at the time of claim received or deduction made
Deduction & Claim and Repairs & Maintenance Account have been shownthenet balance.

case of

 

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation/ amortization and accumulated
impairment,if any.
Cost includes purchaseprice, taxes and duties, labor cost and directly attributable overhead expenditurefor self constructed assets
incurred upto the date the assetis readyforits intended use. Borrowing cost incurred for qualifying assets is capitalized up to the
date theasset is ready for intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for financing the assets.

Depreciation
Useful lives/ depreciation rates
Depreciation is being provided on a pro-rata basis on Written-Down Value Method on the basis of systematicallocation of the
depreciable amountof the assets overits useful life as stated in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 in orderto reflect the
actual usageof the assets.
Depreciation on assetssold, discarded or scrapped,is provided upto the date on whichthesaid assetis sold, discardedor scrapped.

Borrowing Costs :~
Interest and other cost in connection with the borrowing of the fund to the extent related/attributed to the acquisition or
construction offixed assets are capitalized only with respect qualifying fixed assets i.e. those which take substantial period oftime
to get ready for its intendeduse.All other borrowing cost charge to profit & loss account.

FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Provisions, ContingentLiabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized for presentobligations of uncertain timing or amountarising as a result of a past event wherea reliable
estimate can be madeand it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economicbenefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Whereit is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability and commitments, unless the probability of outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existencewill only be confirmed bythe occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities and commitments unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingentassetsare neither recognised nor disclosedin the financial statements.

Retirement & other benefit
Defined Contribution Plans
A defined contributionplanis a post-employmentbenefit plan under which the Companypaysspecified contributions to a separate
entity. The Company makesspecified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and Contributory Pension Fund. The Company's
contribution is recognised as an expensein the Statementof Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

  

Defined Benefits Plans
Thecostofthe defined benefit plan and other post-employmentbenefits and the present value of such obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptionsthat maydiffer from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation andits long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changesin these assumptions. All assumptionsare reviewedat eachreporting date.

  

The companyhasrecognized the gratuity payable to the employees as per the Paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972 as defined benefit
plans. The liability in respect of these benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread overthe period
during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’services.

Cash Flow Statement
Cashflow are reported using the indirect method, wherebynet profit before tax is adjustedfor the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferral or accrual of past or future cash receipts or payment.The cashflows from regular operating, investing
and financing activities of the companyare segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalentsare short term balances, highly liquid investments
that are readly convertible into known amountsof cash and whichare subjectto insignificant risk of changesin value

Inventories
The asseseeis running the business of Transportation & not having anyclosing stock of any nature, therefore, the Accounting
Standard"Valuation of Inventories" (AS-2), are not applicable to the company.

‘Segment Reporting
‘The Companyhas noother reportable segment as defined under "Segment Reporting” (AS - 17). Hencedisclosure of segment wise information is not
applicable.

Investments
Longterm investmentsare stated atcostless other than temporarydiminution in value, if any. Current investmentsare stated at
lower ofcost andfair value.

FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Tax on Income
Income-tax expense comprises currenttax and deferred tax chargeorcredit.
Provision for currenttax is madeon thebasis of the assessable incomeat the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessmentyear.

The deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses and
unabsorbeddepreciation undertax laws, are recognized, only if there is virtualcertaintyof its realization, supported by convincing
evidence. Deferred tax assets on accountofother timing differences are recognized only to the extent there is a reasonable
certainty of its realization. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amountofdeferred tax assets is reviewed to reassure
realization.

 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognized in accordance with the guidance note on “Accounting for credit
available is respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act 1961” issued by the ICAI. MATcredit is recognized as an
asset only when andto the extent thereis convincing evidence that the companywill pay normal incometax during the specified
period.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencyare recorded at the exchangerateprevailing on the date of the transaction. Net exchangegain or
loss resulting in respect offoreign exchangetransactionssettled during the period is recognisedin the Profit and Loss Account.

Earning Per Share
The Companyreports basic and diluted Earnings per Shares (EPS) in accordance with Accounting Standard 20- “Earnings Per
Shares”issued by the Institute Of Chartered Accountantsof India.
Theearning consideration is asertaining the Company's earning per share (EPS) comprise the net profit after tax.The numberof
shares used in computing basis EPS is the weighted numberof shares outstanding during the year/period. The diluted EPS is
calculated onthe basis as basis EPS,after adjusting the effets of potential diluted equity shares.

Impairmentof Assets
‘Anassetis considered as impaired whenat the date of Balance Sheet there are indications ofimpairmentandthe carrying amount
of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs exceeds its recoverable amount(i.e. the
higher of the net asset selling price and valuein use).The carrying amountis reducedto the recoverable amountandthe reduction
is recognized as an impairmentloss in the Statementof Profit and Loss. The impairmentloss recognized in the prior accounting
period is reversedif there has been a changein the estimateof recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on
the revisedcarrying valueoftheimpairedasset overits remainingusefullife.  

Related Party disclosure
All related party transactionsthat were entered into by the Companyduring the financial year/period were on armslengthbasis and
werein the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with
promoters, directors,key managerial personnel or related parties which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
companyatlarge.
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 

Note As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019 
   

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       

Particulars
No Number ‘Amount Number ‘Amount
3. Share Capital

Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 24,000,000 240,000,000 24,000,000 240,000,000

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid-up Capital
Equity Shares of 10/- each 21,082,790 210,827,900 21,082,790 210,827,900

Total 21,082,790 210,827,900 21,082,790 210,827,900

3.1 Reconciliation of number and amountof equity share out standing at the beginningandat the endof the reporting period :

As at As at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Particulars Equity SharesFully Paid Up Equity SharesFully Paid Up
Number ‘Amount Number ‘Amount

Shares Outstandingat the begningofthe year 21,082,790 210,827,900 15,518,790 155,187,900
[Add:- Bonus Shares Issued during the year 5 = = =
[Add:- Shares issued during the year = = 5,564,000 55,640,000
[Less:-Shares boughtback during the year = = = =

Shares Outstanding at the endof the year/period 21,082,790 210,827,900 21,082,790 210,827,900

3.2. _Shareholders holding more than 5%of the equity sharesofthe compan
Nameof Shareholders ‘As at 31.03.2020 ‘As at 31.03.2019

No.of Shares °% of Holding No.of Shares ‘%of Holding
held held

Shakuntala Agrawal 2,965,500 14.07% 2,965,500 14.07%
Ratan Kumar Agrawal 2,930,400 13.90% 2,930,400. 13.90%
[Sonal Agrawal 2,701,800 12.82% 2,701,800 12.82%
[Manoj Kumar Agrawal 2,428,200 11.52% 2,428,200 11.52%
RSR Infrastructure Private Limited 2,000,000 9.49%| 1,800,000 8.54%

3.3. The Company hasonly one class of equity shares.The holders of equity shares are entitled to onevote per share,

3.4 The companydeclares and pays dividendin Indian Rupees. Any dividend proposedbythe Boardof Directors is subjectto the
approvalof the sharedholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case ofinterim dividend

3.5. In the eventofliquidation of the Company,the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remainingassets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential dues. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

3.6 Numberof bonus sharesallotted to existing shareholders other than cash in thelast 5 Years
 

Date ofissue of Fully paid up Bonus Shares Numberof Bonus Shares Issued
 

  10-Feb-18 13794480
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 
Note Particulars ‘As at 31.03.2020 ‘As at 31.03.2019 

 Amount [Amount  ‘Amount, ‘Amount 

Reserve & Surplus

Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance
‘Add: Premium on shares issued
Less:- IPO Related Expenses
Less:- Onissue of Bonusshares
Closing Balance

  

 Surplus
Opening Balance
‘Add:~ Net Profit/ (Net Loss)for the year

Less: Declared Dividend (F.Y. 2018-2019)
Less: Dividend Distributation Tax
Closing Balance

 

Total

Long Term Borrowing
Secured Loan
From Bank

‘Term loans:
a. Axis BankLimited (Vehicle Loan)

Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debt

b. HDFC Bank Limited (Vehicle Loan)
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debt

c. ICICI BankLimited (Vehicle Loan)
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debt

d. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Vehicle Loan)
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Debt

Unsecured Loan
From Others
From Directors
From Others

Total

102,598,209

102,598,209

300,248,517
93,019,671

393,268,188
10,541,395
2,166,815

380,559,978

483,158,187

35,069,164
19,331,310
15,737,854

54,567,396
25,894,532

  

44,872,400
13,041,867
31,830,533

6,262,033

 

111,280,000
8,681,791

102,598,209

193,894,197
106,354,320
300,248,517

300,248,517

402,846,726

54,468,257

 

79,940,098
30,534,642

 

2,485,700
2,485,700

31,783,414
7,188,392

24,595,022

3,178,144

 

(A) Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of the vehicles financed through the loan arrangements. Such loan are repayable in
equal monthly installments overa periodof3 to 5 years and carry interest rate ranging between 8.39%to 11.00%p.a.
Thesecured term loans was guaranteed bythedirectorsof the Company.
There is no default, continuing or otherwise, as at the balance sheetdate,

 

(8) There is no fixed repaymentschedule for the repaymentof above said unsecuredloans.

repaymentofany above loans.

(C) As clarified by the management all above unsecuredloansaretreated as long term andbear interest rate of 12% p.a.
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 

 

  
 

  

  

 

   

  

Note Particulars ‘As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
No ‘Amount [ ‘Amount ‘Amount ‘Amount

6 Deferred Tax Liabilities
‘As per Accounting Standard 22 on accounting for taxes on income, provisions fordeferred tax liability has been calculated. Thebreakup of Net
Deferred TaxLiability at the year/period ended as under:

Particulars
Deferred Tax Liabilty-

Due to Depreciation 3,291,983 5,106,615

Deferred Tax Assets-
Due to unabsorbed Depreciation - -

7 Short Term Borrowings:
Secured Loan
Working Capital Loan From HDFC Bank 101,896,801 81,801,226
Working Capital Loan From Kotak Mahindra Bank 13,748,511 23,272,994
Working Capital Loan From Axis Bank 21,159,922

Unsecured Loan
OtherLoans and Advances - -

Total

(A) Working Capital Loan from HDFC Bankis secured against hypothecation of Book Debts, advances to suppliers and mortgage of
Immovable Properties of the company,collateral security of immovable properties of others along with personal guarantee of
Directors & Relatives and carries effective interest @ 9.75%p.a.

(8) Working Capital Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bankis secured against hypothecation of Current Assets and mortgage of Immovable
Properties of the company along with personal guaranteeofDirectors and Carries effective interest @ 9.15% p.a. (6 months
MCLR+ 1.05%)

(C) Working Capital Loan from Axis Bank is secured against hypothecation of Current Assets and mortgage of Immovable Properties of
the companyalong with personal guarantee & pledge of Share of the of Directors and Carries effective interest @ 9.60% p.a. (3
months MCLR+ 1.50%)

(D) There is no default,continuingor otherwise,asat the balance sheetdate,in repaymentof any above loans.

8 Trade Payable:

Sundry Creditors 122,389,374 217,523,523

Total 122,389,374 217,523,523

9 OtherCurrent Lial Ss:

Current Maturity of Long term debt
Loan from Banks & Financial Institution
Axis BankLimited (Vehicle Loan) 19,331,310 19,399,093,
HDFC Bank Limited (Vehicle Loan) 25,894,532 30,534,642
ICICIBankLimited (Vehicle Loan) - 2,485,700
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Vehicle Loan) 13,041,867 7,188,392

Advancefrom customers - -

Total 58,267,709 59,607,827

10 Short Term Provision:

Provisions (Expenses Payable) 1,926,665 3,708,320
Creditorfor Expenses 27,539,210 40,662,772
Statutoryliabilities 4,637,483 780,179
Gratuity Payable 171,258 615,963

Total   
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 

 

 

 

        
    
 

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at ‘Additions (Adjustment) Total As at During (Adjustment) Total Balance Balance

01.04.2019 During the During the Asat 01.04.2019 the Year —_—Durring the As at Asat As at
Year Year 31.03.2020 Year 31.03.2020 31.03.2020 _31.03.2019

Land 686,018 - - 686,018 - - - - 686,018 686,018

Office Building 13,659,888 - - 13,659,888 3,230,746 507,686 - 3,738,432 9,921,456 10,429,142

Furniture & Fixture 1,253,331 76,401 - 1,329,732 948,643 87,389 - 1,036,032 293,700 304,688

Vehicles (Four Wheeler) 10,442,217 1,078,013 - 11,520,230 7,343,065 1,275,926 - 8,618,991 2,901,239 3,099,152

Vehicles (Two Wheeler)| 2,877,323 60,000 - 2,937,323 2,105,465 206,114 - 2,311,579 625,744 771,858

Office Equipment 1,180,468 192,780 - 1,373,248 946,159 133,091 - 1,079,250 293,998 234,309

Earth Moving Machine 1,960,809 - 1,960,809 - 1,862,769 - 1,862,769 - - 98,040

Computers 1,793,943 331,069 - 2,125,012 1,493,647 260,434 - 1,754,081 370,931 300,296

Truck & Trailors 307,752,549 26,610,658 7,431,531 326,931,676 163,111,529 50,129,210 6,661,543 206,579,196 120,352,480 144,641,020

[TOTAL(A) 341,606,546 28,348,921 9,392,340 360,563,127 181,042,023 52,599,850 8,524,312 225,117,561 135,445,566 160,564,523

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
(Godwan = 3,073,083 = 3,073,083 = = = = 3,073,083 =

[TOTAL (B) = 3,073,083, = 3,073,083, = = = = 3,073,083 =

[TOTAL (A+B) [341,606,546 31,422,004 9,392,340 363,636,210 181,042,023 52,599,850 8,524,312 225,117,561 138,518,649 160,564,523|

[PREVIOUS YEAR [293,916,126 66,474,003 18,783,583 341,606,546 | 145,113,202 52,197,860 16,269,039 181,042,023 | 160,564,523 ]
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

 

 

   

Note Particulars ‘As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
No ‘Amount [ ‘Amount Amount ‘Amount

12 Long Term Loans & Advances:
Unsecured, considered good:
Security Deposits 22,609,502 23,216,372
Loan & AdvancestoRelated Parties - -
Advancesfor capital goods :

Total 22,609,502 23,216,372

13 Other non-current assets
Preliminary Expenses
IPO Related Expenses - -

Total

14 Trade Receivables:
More than six month
Unsecured considered good 75,138,643 37,375,376
Considered Doubtful 500,477 36,342,180

75,639,120 73,717,556
Less: Provision for doubtful Receivables 500,477 36,342,180

75,138,643 37,375,376

Less than six month
Unsecured considered good 816,775,643 867,219,341

Total 891,914,286 904,594,717

15 Cash andcash equivalents:
Cashin hand 3,684,685 2,826,971
Balance with Bank

In current accounts 4,205,931 6,340,450
In Fixed Deposits 11,136,386 10,379,309

Total 19,546,730

16 Short-term loans and advances:
Unsecured, considered good
Balances with Governmentauthorities (Net of Tax) 47,472,427 40,033,441
Prepaid Expense 5,252,134 4,970,689
Loans and advances ( Recoverablein cash or kind) 6,563,287 5,569,716
Loans and advances to employees 161,000 51,000

Total

17 Other Current Assets:

 

Interest accrued on bank deposits
Interest Receivable on Security deposits

Total
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Note Particulars ‘As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019
No ‘Amount ‘Amount Amount ‘Amount

18 Revenuefrom operations:

Gross Incomefrom Transportation Business
Transportation Receipts 3,889,768,094 4,883,129,524

Total 3,889,768,094 4,883,129,524

19 Other Income:

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 2,002,972 2,860,456
AmountReceived on Write-off Account 3,105,811 1,000,000
Incentive & Loyalities Received 6,200,972 12,560,357
Interest from Bank FDR 860,427 685,506
Interest on IT Refund 1,258,447 -
Interestfrom Deposits 783,870 2,902,744 400,014 1,085,520

Total 14,212,499 17,506,333

20 Gross Transportation Expenses

Lorry Hire Chargespaid 3,403,772,024 4,391,282,218
Loading & Unloading & Handling Charges 356,853 948,257
Truck Trip Expenses 177,636,473 161,274,256
Direct Expensesfor Truck, Trailor
Repairs & Maintenance(Truck & Trailor) 24,942,028 19,769,131
RTO & Insurance Charges 10,849,646 35,791,674 9,204,033 28,973,164

Total

21 Employeebenefit expense:

Salaries & Wages
Employee Provident Fund & ESIC
Staff Rent
Staff Welfare
Bonus
Director's Remuneration
Gratuity

Total
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17,174,363
2,045,099
1,224,310
1,054,233

7,900,000

  

15,838,736
1,907,923
1,672,440
869,292

1,318,550
5,430,000
615,963

27,652,904
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As at 31.03.2020 ‘As at 31.03.2019 
   

 

Particulars
No Amount | Amount ‘Amount ‘Amount

22 costs:

Interest on Loan 624,589 885,610
Interest on Hire Charges 14,278,382 13,946,053
Interest on Cash Credit 10,957,641 9,516,901
OtherInterest 339,515 82,176
Bank Guarantee Fees, Charges & Commission 2,426,409 1,616,019

23

24

Total

Depreciation & Amortisation Exspenses

Depreciation

Other Expenses:

Administration & Selling Expenses.
Payments to Auditor:

For statutory audit
Repairs & Maintenance (Others)
Postage, Telegram
Telephone Expenses
Traveling, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Office & Miscellaneous Expenses
CSR Expenditure
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges
InternalAudit Fees
Advertisement & Publicity
Provision of Bad Debts Customer Receivables(written off)
CashTheft
Donation
Commission
Electricity
Office & Godown Rent
Deduction & Claim

Total

 

52,599,850

52,599,850, 

354,000
1,135,281
511,048
720,623

3,564,784
1,327,408
1,539,351

2,171,491
247,800
676,172
500,477

91,411
433,732
933,295,

3,745,645
34,151,578
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52,197,860

52,197,860 

354,000
1,085,295
597,059
918,503

2,874,468
2,059,428
1,920,433
1,250,000
1,737,584
141,600
607,750

36,342,180
100,000
99,279
56,750

932,643
3,949,415
7,671,023

62,697,410
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ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Foreign Currency Transaction
The Companyhasnot earnedor spent anyforeign exchangeduring the currentyear.

Earning per Share:
The numerator and denominatorusedto calculate Basic and Diluted Earni ings Per Share 

 

 

 

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders considered for Basic EPS (Amountin RS.) ‘93,019,671 106,354,320
Add: Dilutive effect on profit (Amountin Rs.) - -
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders for computing Diluted EPS (Amount in Rs.) 93,019,671 106,354,320
Weighted average numberof Equity Shares outstanding considered for Basic EPS 21,082,790 210,827,900
Add: Dilutive effect of Options outstanding - Numberof equity shares - -
Weighted average numberof Equity Shares considered for computing Diluted EPS 21,082,790 21,082,790
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 10 10
Basic Earnings Per Share 4.41 5.04
Diluted Earnings Per Share ( 4.41 5.04 
There are no extraordinary itemsanddiscontinuing operations.

Related Party Disclosues
Disclosure as required underrelated party disclosure (AS-18) issued by TheInstitute of Chartered Accountants of India are as
below:

List of Related Parties: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nameof Related Party Description of Relationship
Ratan Kumar Agrawal KMP, Director
[Shakuntala Devi Agrawal KMP, Director
Manoj Kumar Agrawal KMP, Director
Ravi Agrawal KMP, Director
Akshay Agrawal Relatives of KMP
Banarshi Devi Agrawal Relatives of KMP
[Subhash ChandMittal Relatives of KMP
[Sonal Agrawal Relatives of KMP.
Ashok Kumar Agrawal Relatives of KMP
Kapil Mittal Relatives of KMP
Ravi Agrawal HUF Relatives of KMP
Ashok Kumar & Sons Relatives of KMP.
Rishi Kumar & Sons Relatives of KMP
Manoj Agrawal & Sons Relatives of KMP   
Transactions carried outwith key managementpersonnel, their relatives andtheir enterprises where transactions havetakenplace,
in ordinary course of business:
The transactions with relatedparties for the year are summarised below:
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Nature of transaction Personnel (KMP) Personnel (KMP) Relatives of KMP Relatives of KMP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

3ist March 2020 31st March 2019 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest expense onloans taken 624,589 885,610 = =
Unsecured loan taken (net of Interest paid/payabl = < = 5
Repaymentof loans taken’ 6,127,511 8,153,176 = 5
Rental expense 840,000 840,000 360,000 360,000
Remuneration/Salary 7,900,000. 5,430,000 2,190,000 2,280,000
Sale of Fixed Assets 5 = = :
Purchases of Spare parts : = 11,487,450 9,621,806
Freight Paid 4,654,855 7,027,011 54,974,781 24,157,835
Freight received 5 = 4,136,401 8,464,764    
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

Balances(payable to) receivable from related parties are summarised below:
 

 
 
 
  

Nature oftransaction Personnel (KMP) Personnel (KMP) Relatives of KMP Relatives of KMP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

3ist March 2020 31st March 2019 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Loan payable 6,262,033 3,178,144 = =
Rent payable 63,000 63,000 27,000 27,000
Remuneration/ Salary Payable 563,767 421,375 175,700 265,000
Balance payable = = 3,830,919 5     
Note

 

Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditor.

The Company hasnotreceived information from Creditors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
DevelopmentAct, 2006 and hencedisclosures as required under the Companies Act, 1956 relating to amountsunpaid asat the year
end togetherwith interestpaid / payable have notbeen given.

In the opinion of Board of the directors of the company, current assets, loans and advances have value at equal to the amount at
which theyare stated in the Balance Sheet.

Defined Benefit Plan (Employee Gratuity)-The present value ofobligation is determined basedonactuarial valuation is as under- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

‘Actuarial Assumptions 2019-2020 2018-2019
Discount Rate 7.00%p.a 7.75%pa.
[Salary Growth Rate 5.00%p.a 5.00%p.a.

Presentvalue of Obligation at the beginningof the year 5,746,904 5,130,941
[Current Service cost 734,802 606,131
Interest Cost 402,283 397,648
Past Service Cost = :
Benefit Paid ~ :
[Actuarial (Gain)/loss (473,092) (387,816)
Present valueof the Obligationat the endof period 6,410,897 5,746,904    
The company has debited profit & loss account by R5.1,71,258 (R5.6,15,963 up to 31/03/2019) being the liability for employee
retirement benefit(gratuity) till 31/03/2020.

 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

a) Gross amountrequired to be spend by the companyduring the year as per Section 135
of Companies Act,2013 read with Schedule VII thereof 2,026,916 1,228,069

b) The companyhas spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility which includes such
expensesincurred outof unspend amountofearlier year. - 1,250,000

Thevarious head which the CSR expenditure wereincurred in cashis detailed as follows
 RETEVENTCTSUSE OF

PARTICULARS Schedule viito the |v. 2919-2020 F.y. 2018-2019PARTICULARS Companies
JAct,2013
 

Promoting Education ii - 1,250,000      
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32 Contingent ies & Commitments
Particulars: Asat 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

T___ Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:Guarantees,
‘a)__ Bank Guarantees issued by the Company's Bankers on behalf of the Company. * 59,206,000 45,922,993
b)__ Letter of credit opened by banks Nil Nil
©) Corporate guarantees/undertakings issued on behalf of third parties Nil Nil
II. Statutory Demands
d) Disputed Excise Duty and Other demands Nil Nil
e) Income Tax demands wherethe cases are pending at various stages of appeal with the 6,221,100 6,807,250

authorities. **
Til Others

#)__ Claims against the company, not acknowledge as debt Nil Nil
(9g) _Uncalled liability towardspartly paid up shares Nil Nil
1v._Commitments

Estimated amountof contracts remaining to be executed oncapital Nil Nil
accountand notprovided for (net of advance)

* ~The above bankguaranteein the name of Companyis partly secured against thefixed deposit of Rs. 1,11,36,386/- (Previous Year
Rs. 1,00,00,000/-)

** Disputed income tax demandfor A.Y. 2011-12 & 2012-2013 not providedforis Rs. 62,21,100/- (Previous Year for AY. 2011-12 &
2012-2013 notprovided for is Rs. 68,07,250/-), Appeal against this order is pending before CIT (Appeal). Income Tax is paid in
protesttill date against this orderof Rs. 62,21,100/-.

33 Covid-19 pandemic has beenrapidly spreading throughoutthe world, including India. Governmentin India has taken significant
measures to curb the spread of the virus including imposing mandatory lockdownsandrestrictions in activities. Consequently,
Company's Operations had to be closed down for a considerable period oftime,including after the year end. As a result of the
lockdown, the likely revenue from the month of March 2020 has been impacted. Continued lockdowns are likely to impact the
Companies operations. The Company is monitoring the situation closely taking into account directives from the Governments.
Managementbelievesthatit has taken into accountall the possible impacts of knownevents arising from COVID-19 pandemic and
the resultant lockdownsin the preparation of the financial statements. However, giventheeffect of these lockdownson the overall
economicactivity and in particular onthe logistics industry, the impact assessment of COVID-19 on the abovementionedfinancial
statement captions is subject to significant estimation uncertainties given its nature and duration and, accordingly, the actual
impacts in future maybedifferent from those estimatedasatthe date of approvalof these financial statements. The Companywill
continue to monitor any material changesto future economicconditions and consequential impact onits financial results.

34 In the opinionof the Board, Current Assets,Loans & Advances havevalue on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least
equalto the amountas which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.

35 Balance in the accounts of Sundry creditors,Sundry debtors,Advances and Security deposits has not been confirmed by the
respectiveparties and are subject to confirmation by them.

36 Previous year figures have been re-grouped to make them comparable with currentperiod figures wherever found necessary.

Asperourreport of even date attached For and onbehalf of the Board.

For,AGRAWAL & PANSARI
Firm Registration No.-003350C. Sd/- sa/-
Chartered Accountants RATAN KUMAR AGRAWAL RAVI AGRAWAL

(Managing Director) (WholetimeDirector)
DIN: 01608584 DIN: 01392652

Sd/-
CA Sanskar Agrawal
Partner Sd/- sd/-
(M.No.- 429385) Akshay Agrawal ‘Aakash Kumar Sahu
PLACE : RAIPUR (Chief Finance Officer) (CompanySecretary
DATE : 27/07/2020 ‘& ComplianceOfficer)

M.No. 51233
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 25" Annual General Meeting of the members of the Companywill
be held on 04t September 2020 at 05:00 PM at the corporate office of the Company at A-1, 3*4
Floor, CG Elite Complex, Opposite Mandi Gate, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)- 492001 to transact the
following Business:

ORDINARYBUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Companyfor the
Financial Year ended March 31s 2020, including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March

2020, the statementof Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date and the reports of the

Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Smt Shakuntala Devi Agrawal (DIN: 01608318), who
retires by rotation andbeing eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To declare final dividend @ 0.50 per equity share.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To revise the remuneration of Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director of the
Company.

To consider andif thoughtfit, to pass, the following resolutionas a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVEDTHATPursuantto the provisions of Section 196 & 197 read Schedule V and

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory

modification or re-enactment thereof) and applicable clauses of the Articles of Association

of the Company and upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

and Board of Directors, consent of the Company be andis hereby accorded to revise the

remuneration payable to Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01608584), Managing Director

of the company with effect from 01st September 2020 for the remaining period of his term as

follows:

Consolidated Salary: Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) Per Month

(excluding reimbursement of expenses, if any) which includes the variable pay and

perquisites.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHATthe Board of Directors (which term shall always be deemed

to include any Committee as constituted or to be constituted by the Board to exercise its



powersincluding the powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorised

to vary or increase the remuneration specified above from time to time to the extent the

Board of Directors may deem appropriate, provided that such variation or increase, as the

case may be, is within the overall limits specified under the relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and/ or as approved by the Central Government or any such other

competentauthority.

Date: 27.07.2020 Byorderof the Board
Place: Raipur For, Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited

Ratan Kumar Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:01608584



NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),

in respect of Item no.4 to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto.

A memberentitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on poll instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a
memberof the company. A person canact as proxy on behalf of member(s) not exceeding
fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share
capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent
(10%) of the total share capital of the company may appoint a single person as proxy and
suchpersonshall not act as proxy for any other person or member.

The instrument appointing the proxy (enclosed hereto) in order to be effective must be
deposited (duly completed, stamped and signed) at the registered office of the company
notless than forty-eight (48) hours before the commencementof the meeting.

Member(s)/Proxies/Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the enclosed

attendance slip duly filled in and signed for attending the meeting. Member(s) are
requested to write the Client ID and DP ID number.

Corporate Member(s) intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the
meeting are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power of
Attorney authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
meeting.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Act, member(s) of the Company may nominate a person in
whomtheshares held by him/them shall vest in the event of his/ their unfortunate death.

The nomination form maybefiled with the respective Depository Participant.

In case ofjoint holders, only such joint holder who is namedfirst in the order of nameswill
be entitled to vote.

The route map showingdirectionsto reach the venueof the meeting is enclosed.

The relevant details of Directors proposed to be appointed/ reappointed, as required under
Reg. 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(‘Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard -2 on General Meetings are also annexed
as Annexure-A.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding,
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Agreements in
which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be

available for inspection by the membersat the meeting.

Members desirous of seeking any information relating to the Accounts of the Company
may write to the Companyat the registered office for the attention of CompanySecretary,
at least seven days in advance of the Meeting so that requisite information can be made

available at the Meeting.



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Companyshall remain closed
from Saturday 29 August, 2020 to Friday, 04tt September, 2020 (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of Annual General Meeting and determining the shareholders whoare entitled
to receive dividend whose namesappearin the Register of Members.

The dividend as recommendedbythe Board of Directors, if declared at the Annual General

Meeting will be paid onor after 04t September, 2020 but before 03"! October, 2020 toall
those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form as per the beneficial ownership
data available to the Company by National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) and
the Central Depository Services Limited (“CDSL”).

Membersare hereby requested to intimate their folio numbers, the changes if any, of their
registered addresses and respective bank account details to their respective Depository
Participant(s). The Particulars recorded with DP(s) will be considered for making payment
of dividend through Electronic Clearing System (“ECS”). The Members are therefore,
requested to take appropriate action in the matter, in their owninterest, to avoid delay in
receiving the paymentof dividend.

All relevant documentsreferred to in the Notice of the Meeting shall be open for inspection

at the Registered Office of the Company during normalbusiness hours (11.00 am to 05.00
pm)on all working days, upto the date of the meeting.

The voting rights of member(s) shall be in proportionto their shares in the paid up equity
share capital of the Companyas onthe cut-off date i.e. Friday, August 28, 2020. A person
whose nameis recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e. Friday, August 28, 2020 only shall
be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting / Poll.

In compliance with the MCACirculars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the

AGMalong with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories.
Members maynotethat the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the
Company’s website www.obclimited.com.

For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company
electronically:

a) Members holding shares in physical mode and who havenotregistered / updated their
email address with the Companyare requested to register / update the same by writing to
the Company with details of folio number andattachinga self-attested copy of PAN cardat
www.obclimited.com.

b) Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to register / update their
email addresses with the relevant Depository Participant.



19. Voting through electronic means:

i. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rules prescribed there

under, as amended and Reg. 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is pleased to
provide e-voting facility to its members to exercise their right to vote on resolutions
proposed to be considered at the meeting by electronic means and the items of business
given in the Notice of meeting may be transacted through e-Voting Services. Thefacility of
casting the votes by the membersusing an electronic voting system from place other than
venue of the meeting (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL).

ii. The facility for voting through poll shall be made available at the meeting and the
member(s) attending the meeting who havenotcast their vote by remote e-voting shall
be entitled to cast their vote at the meeting through poll. No voting by show of handswill
be allowed at the Meeting. Please note that the member may participate in the meeting
even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to
vote again at the meeting.

iii. Members who havecasted their vote by both the modes, than vote casted through poll
will be treated invalid.

iv. The remote e-voting period commencesat 09.00 a.m. on Tuesday, September 01, 2020
and endsat 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, September 03, 2020. During this period, member(s) of
the Company, holding shares as on the cut-off date of Friday, August 28, 2020, may cast
their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the membershall not
be allowed to change it subsequently.

v. The process and mannerfor remote e-voting are as under:
(i) Log onto the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

(ii) Click on Shareholders/Members

(iii) Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL:16 digits beneficiary ID
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID
c. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on “Login”
e. If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to

www.evotingindia.com and casted your vote earlier for any Company/ entity, then
your existing passwordis to be used.If you are a first time userfollow the steps given
below.

(iv) Fill up the followingdetails in the appropriate boxes:
a) PAN:Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax

Department. Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
numbersent separately to you in the PAN Field.



b) Date of Birth (DOB): Enter Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
recorded in your demat accountor in the Companyrecordsin order to
login.

(v) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT”tab.

(vi) Members will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new passwordfield. Kindly note
that this passwordis also to be used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions
of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform.It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(vii) Click on the relevant EVSN of Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited on which you
choose to vote.

(viii) On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The

option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

(ix) Click on the “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(x) After selecting the resolution you have decidedto vote on,click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm yourvote, click on “OK”,
else to change yourvote, click on “CANCEL”and accordingly modify yourvote.

(xii) Once you “CONFIRM”yourvote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify yourvote.

(xiii) You canalso take out print of the voting done by youbyclicking on “Click here
to print” option on the Voting page.

(xiv) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed login password then enter
the User ID and imageverification code andclick on “Forgot Password” & enter the
details as prompted by the system.

(xv) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting
available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from
Google Play Store. Apple and Window phoneusers can download the app from App
Store and Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as
prompted by the mobile app while voting through your mobile phone.

(xvi) A. Institutional shareholders(i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRIetc.) are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporate.



B. They should e-mail a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the
stampandsignof the entity to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
C. After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user who
would beable to link the account(s) which they wish to vote on.

D. Thelist of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk. evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approvalofthe accounts they would beableto cast their vote.
E. They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if
any, in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xvii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding remote e-voting, you may
refer Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindiacom under help section or write e-mail to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com orcall on toll free no. 18002005533.

(xviii)Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes the member of
the Companyafter dispatch of the Notice of the meeting and holdingshares asof the
cut-off date Friday, August 28, 2020, may follow the same procedure as mentioned
abovefor remote e-voting.

(xix) The Company has appointed Mr. Anil Kumar Agrawal, Partner, M/s. Anil
Agrawal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 8828)
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

(xx) The Chairmanshall, at the meeting, at the end of discussion on the resolutions
on which votingis to be held, allow voting with the assistanceof scrutinizer, by use
of Polling Paperfor all those members whoare present at the meeting but have not
cast their votes by availing the remote e-votingfacility.

(xxi) The poll process shall be conducted and a report thereon shall be prepared in
accordance with Section 109 of the Act read with the relevant rules made thereunder.
In such an event, votes cast under Poll taken together with the votes cast through
remote e-voting shall be counted for the purposeof passing of resolution(s).

(xxii)The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the meeting (Poll) and
through remote e-voting, will, not later than forty eight (48) hours of conclusion of
the Meeting, make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the
Chairmanor any other Director of the Company authorised by him in writing who
shall declare the result of the voting forthwith. The Results declared alongwith the
consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company and
on the website of CDSL immediately after the declaration of result. The results
shall also be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchanges.

(xxiii) The results shall also be displayed at the Registered Office of the Company.

(xxiv) Subject to receipt of sufficient votes, the resolution(s) shall be deemed to be
passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on
Friday, September04, 2020.



Date: 27.07.2020

Place: Raipur

Byorderof the Board

For, Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited

Ratan Kumar Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:01608584



STATEMENT PURSUANTTO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIESACT,2013
 

The Following statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in

the accompanying Notice:

ITEM NO. 4: TO REVISE REMUNERATION OF SHRI RATAN KUMAR AGRAWAL,

MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY
 

 

In view of pandemic COVID-19 virus prevailing in the country and continue impactof it on the
business of the company and to boost confidence among employees and members of the
Company, Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company has decided to reduce
his remuneration by Rs 50,000 per month.

The Board appreciates Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal decision and also The Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors in its respective meetings held on 27/07/2020,

has considered the matter of revision in the remuneration of Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal. Board
recommends the members to decrease Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal remuneration by Rs. 50,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Thousand only) per month so as to revised monthly remuneration of Shri Ratan
Kumar Agrawal comes at Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month
effective from 01s September, 2020.

Further, the revision in the remuneration of Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal requires the approvalof
shareholders by way of Special Resolution as per provisions of section 197 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the same, the matter is recommended to

Shareholdersfor their approval.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial personnel of the company and their relatives,
except Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawalandhisrelatives, are in any way concernedorinterested in the
proposedrevision in the remuneration of Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal as Managing Director of the
company.

The Directors recommend the aforesaid resolution for the approval by the members as Special
Resolution.

Date: 27.07.2020 Byorderof the Board
Place: Raipur For, Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited

Ratan Kumar Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:01608584



ANNEXUREATO NOTICE”

Details of the Director Seeking Appointmentor having proposed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

remuneration

Nameof Director Ratan Kumar Agrawal

DIN 01608584
Nature Decrease in Remuneration of Managing Director

Date of Birth 11/05/1956

Qualification Under Graduate

Date of Appointment 18/10/1994

Experiencein specific functional area 26 Years

No. of Shares Held in the Company 2930400

Directorship held in other public Company(if -

any)
Particulars of Committee Chairmanship/ -
Membership held in other Companies 

Date: 27.07.2020
Place: Raipur

Byorderof the Board

For, Orissa Bengal Carriers Limited

Ratan Kumar Agrawal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:01608584

 



Form No. MGT-11
 

Proxy form
[Pursuantto section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Nameof the member(s):
 

 

 

 

Registered Address:

E-mail ID:

FolieNe. /ClientId:

I/We,being the member(s) of equity shares of ORISSA BENGAL CARRIER LTD,

hereby appoint

Name:- Name:-

Address:- Address:-

Email Id:- Email Id:-

Signature:.......0.0.ccccecceseeeeee ees , or failing Signature:.........0.ccceeeseeeeeeseees,

him  
 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual

General Meeting of the company, to be held on the Friday, 04‘ September, 2020 at A-1, 3'4 Floor,

CG Elite Complex, Opposite Mandi Gate, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)- 492001 at 05:00 PM and at
any adjournmentthereofin respectof such resolutionsasare indicated below :

 

S.No. Resolution Vote
(Optionalsee Note 2)*

For Against
 

 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company

for the Financial Year ended March 31s 2020 and
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

thereon.
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Shakuntala

Devi Agrawal (DIN: 01608318), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-

 

    appointment.

3. To declare final dividend @ 0.50 per equity share.

4. To revise remuneration of Shri Ratan Kumar Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company.    
 

 

  

 Signedthis. ....... day of......... 2020 Aix

v Signatureof shareholder Revenue
Stamp

   
v Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:



2*

This form of proxy in orderto be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the

registered office of the Company,notless than 48 hours before the commencementof the

Meeting.

It is optional to indicate your preference.If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank
againstanyorall Resolutions, your proxywill be entitled to vote in the manneras he/she

thinks appropriate.



ATTENDANCESLIP

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pleasefill this attendance slip and handit over at the entrance of the venue of the meeting

DP Id No.

Client Id No.

Name: 

Address: 

No. of Shares held:

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of Orissa Bengal Carrier Ltd on 04th

September, 2020 at A-1, 3'4 Floor, CG Elite Complex, Opposite Mandi Gate, Pandri, Raipur (C.G.)-

492001.

Signature of the Member / Proxy



ROUTE MAP

A-1, 3RD FLOOR, CG ELITE COMPLEX, OPPOSITE MANDI GATE, PANDRI, RAIPUR(C.G.)- 492001
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